
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
                                                 Tuesday, January 22, 2019 
                 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 

       6:30 p.m.  
(6:00 p.m. Non-Public Session) 

 
  

I. CALL TO ORDER-Harry Dailey-Chair  
 

II. 6:00PM NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C)  
 

III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

IV. PRESENTATIONS 
i. Police Chiefs-Wilton and Lyndeborough 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda. This is also the 
public’s opportunity to speak to any topic concerning the school district.  No complaints regarding specific staff 
members will be heard during a public meeting.  The District has established separate procedures for complaints 
against individual employees.   

  
VI. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Reports  
i. Superintendent’s Report  
ii. Director of Student Support Services Report 

iii. Director of Technology’s Report 
b. Letters/Information 

i. Curriculum Calendar/Long-term Planning   
ii. Response to Board  

 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

i. Treasurer’s Reports-June 2018-September 2018 
 

VIII. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 
a. FY 2019-2020  

i. Final Draft Prep for Public Hearing 
ii. Warrant Articles 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
X. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 
b. Transfer 

 
XI. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

i. Budget Liaison 
ii. Policy Committee 

 
XII. POLICIES 

i. JICI-Weapons on School Property-3rd Reading 
ii. BIA-New Board Member Orientation-3rd Reading 

iii. BDB-Board Officers-3rd Reading 
 

XIII. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES 
i. Nomination-Jeffrey Moore-MS Math-WLC 

 
 



 
 

XIV. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION  
 

XV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

XVI. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS   
 

XVII. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C)   

 
XVIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 
  

INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting‐February 6, 6:30 PM at LCS‐Multipurpose Room 

 
The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
January 22, 2019 

 
In response to comments and concerns brought up by the public at the January 8 board meeting, I 
have been reaching out to some of the parents who brought forward their thoughts.  I have appreciated 
our discussions and I continue to invite feedback from members of our school community. 
 
I have been preparing documents as requested by the board in regard to the budget.  I have included 
in the board packet: 
 

 A summary of how the ADM was calculated for the upcoming budget 
 MS24-R documents from 2017 and 2018 
 DRA documents for the apportionment for 2017 and 2018 

 
Thank you to Lise Tucker in gathering this information. 
 
The New Hampshire Department of Education has brought forward a technical advisory in regard to 
HB 1612 which states: 
 
 “This bill requires each local district to develop a data security plan.” 
 
I have attached the NH DOE minimum standards as they have been reported to the district.  There is 
a reference to the publication “Protecting Controlled Unclassified Information in Nonfederal systems 
and Organizations.”  This is 125-page document that has been forwarded to the board.  Mr. Verratti 
will be developing a check list to ensure that we will be in compliance. 
 
In response to a citizen concern raised in regard to a phone outage that occurred last month.  There 
are emergency plans that are reviewed annually in school offices with the Director of Technology.  
Each building has the capability to use hard wire lines that are not connected to our main system.  
This allows staff to call out in case of an emergency.  We will begin to post these procedures in the 
offices so that staff has immediate access.  This is a rarity and having the information handy is good 
practice.  In addition, as a part of future protocol, local law enforcement will be notified whenever 
there is a phone outage to coordinate any activities deemed appropriate and to get counsel on safety 
issues at hand. 
 
On January 23rd the organization known as Community Action for Safe Teens will be holding a 
“Town Hall Meeting” on Wednesday January 23 at 6PM in the Milford Town Hall.  The topic is 
preventing vaping, marijuana, alcohol and prescription drug misuse among youth.  I sent out an email 
message to parents about this on January 15.  All adults along with middle and high school students 
are invited to attend. 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road 
Lyndeborough, NH  03082 

603-654-8088 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 
  
  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

On Monday February 4, I will be attending the annual Legislative Review Part 1 session to be held 
in Concord.  This is a great opportunity to hear from legislative leaders from the house and senate as 
well as the governor if he is available to attend.  I will bring back a full set of information for the 
board’s review. 
 
On Saturday February 2nd the Souhegan Valley Chamber of Commerce will be holding a “Wellness 
Fair”.  This free event will be held at the Souhegan Valley Boys and Girls Club in Milford from 11 
AM to 2PM.   
 
On Tuesday February 5th I will be meeting with town officials in regard to an emergency management 
plan.  FRES is an evacuation center and the meeting is to ensure that plans are in place should the 
facility be needed.   
 
I attended the Southwest Superintendent’s meeting on Friday January 18 in Henniker. 
 
I will be attending the New Hampshire School Administrators Association meeting on January 25 in 
Concord. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
   January 9, 2019 
 
   To date, twenty-three referrals have been made to the special education department since the  
   beginning of the 2018-19 school year.  
 
    LCS   FRES   WLC  High Mowing Schools 
   6                                          7      5   5 
 
    Of these 23 referrals, 11 students have been evaluated, resulting in 6 students being identified as  
    students in need of special education; 5 students were not identified. 
 
    Special education case managers and related service providers are quite busy processing the 
    remaining 12 referrals.  Despite the volume of referrals, the teams have been able to meet 
    evaluation/meeting timelines specified by NHDOE guidelines.   

 
    STUDENT SUMMARY as of 1/9/2019 
 
     Disability Category  Number of Students 
 
 Referrals   12 currently in process  

 
Autism    15 
Developmental Delay  14 
Emotional Disturbance  4 

   Intellectual Disability  2 
 Multiple Disabilities  1 
 Other Health Impaired  18 

Specific Learning Disability 56 
Speech/Language Impaired 14 

     124 
    
     We began the 2018-19 school year with 112 identified students; 6 students have been newly  
     identified and 6 students with educational disabilities moved into the district. 
  
     
    Respectfully submitted, 
    Betty Moore, Director of Student Support Services 
 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

  192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   

                       603-654-8088 

 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 

 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 

  

  



  Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District-SAU #63 
   Technology Director 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 
        603-654-8088 

 

 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

                                                            Kevin P. Verratti, Director of Technology 

Technology School Board Report 
01/08/2019 

 On 12/12/18 I attended an informational meeting sponsored by NHSBA and the NHCTO Council 

regarding HB1612.  HB1612 (now RSA189:66(v)) addresses data collection and privacy in 

schools.  This new law requires all schools to adopt a Data Governance and Security Policy and 

create a procedure for when a breach occurs.  Part of the process for creating the procedural 

document will need to include a review of all software used in the district, policies and 

procedures for access to protected data, and all hardware and third party vendors that may hold 

Personally Identifiable Information (PII). 

 On 12/18/18‐12/19/18 the district experienced an outage with our phone system.  During this 

time we were not able to make calls through that system.  Our emergency procedure during an 

outage such as this is to fail over to hard lines that are located in every office for external calls 

and radio use for internal calls.  These lines allow us to make emergency calls such as 911 or 

contact parents and are part of our response procedures for an outage such as the one we 

experienced.  This process is explained to office staff at the start of every school year and at the 

beginning of every event that causes us to fail over.  While this has been explained verbally in 

the past and at the start of an outage I will ensure it is in writing and appropriate signage is in 

place.  This outage was related to an upstream carrier issue Mitel had with their T1 circuits at 

AT&T.  Per our SLA we are guaranteed 99.99% uptime of the system, failure to meet this SLA will 

result in a credit on our bill.  

 12/21/18 I ordered a 911 audit of our phone system after reports of issues making the call from 

FRES.  This audit involved the Department of Safety Bureau of Emergency Communications 

Public Safety Answering Point and Operations (911 PSAP Command).  PSAP Command scheduled 

the audit to take place on 12/27/18.  Every phone in every office of the district was tested as 

well as phones on every floor and wing in the district.  Every location and every phone passed 

the tests.  It took approximately 6 hours to complete the audit.  Police recommended a sticker 

instructing how to dial 911 in an emergency be placed on every phone handset.  It was later 

reported that there may have been confusion with how to dial 911 inside the district and an 

email was sent to all staff instructing them how to do so. 

 In response to comments made on the 1/8/19 board meeting.  A question was brought up as to 

whether our internet service and phone lines are connected.  Our internet lines and our phones 

lines are separate technologies, come from different vendors and in some instances enter the 

building in different locations, they are not connected to each other.     

Respectfully, 
 
Kevin P. Verratti 
Director of Technology 
SAU #63 
 









2017-2018 
English K-5 Reading-

Language Arts : $25,000 

Math 

.Social Studies 

Science 

Electives 

2018-2019 
K-5 Reading $6,000 

'K-5 Writing_ 

K-5 Math- PD 
$18,_0_90 

AP US Hist 

CURRICULUM REVISION CYCLE 
2019-2020 2020-2021 

__ K-5_ \/'{!lt_ing 

9·12- New anchor 
books $3,000 per 

: grade 

AP Grade 11-$_2,9Q0 

2021-2022 
6-8 New Anchor 
Books- $9,000 

2022··2023 

'K-5 Math- $25,000 
:.nf::\lv p�ogra�_Yr 1 

K-5 Math-$25,000 Yr. HS Math
2

Math 

'AP Calculus- $,?,00)

'6-8 Math $12,000
Ne� Pro8ram 

AP World Hist$ 2,000 AP Govt. 6-12 Soc Studies- 6-12 Soc. 
Curiculum Review Studies $10,000 

K-·5 Soc Studles K-5 Soc Studies 
Curriculum review $8,000 

Science- Funded K-12 Science- On going K-12 Science- On 
through grant funds 

,6-12 Technology 
FA(_:5- Review 
PE K-12- review 

Art and Music K-12 
,Review 

supply costs of 
Approx. $5,000 

_ 6-12 Techno!o�y 

Spanish AP- $1,000 
Art and Music K-12 
lmplment new units 

going supply costs 
of Approx. $5,000 

French AP- $1,000 

World Language 
Review 

2024-2025 
Review K- 5 ELA 



June 28, 2018

Funding Commitment Decision Letter
Funding Year 2018

Contact Information:
Michele Quinn
WILTON-LYNDEBORO COOP SCH DIST SAU63
PO Box 1149
WILTON, NH 03086
mquinn@eratespecialist.org

FCC Form 471: 181042103

BEN: 120925
Wave: 12
Application Nickname: FY2018 WILTON-LYNDEB
ORO COOP S.D. SAU 63 - 471 - CAT1 - MQ

Totals

Total Committed $24,020.06

What is in this letter?
Thank you for submitting your application for Funding Year 2018 Schools and Libraries Program
(E-rate) funding. Attached to this letter, you will find the funding statuses for the FCC Form(s) 471,
Services Ordered and Certification Form, that you submitted and referenced above.

The Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) is providing this information to both the
applicant(s) and the service provider(s) so that all parties are aware of the post-commitment changes
related to their funding requests and can work together to complete the funding process for these
requests.

Next Steps
1. Work with your service provider(s) to determine if your bills will be discounted or if you will request

reimbursement from USAC after paying the full cost for the services you receive.

2. Review the Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) requirements and file the FCC Form 486 (Service

Confirmation and CIPA Certification Form). The deadline to submit this form is 120 days from the

date of this letter or from the service start date (whichever is later).

http://usac.org/sl/applicants/step05/cipa.aspx
http://usac.org/sl/applicants/step05/form-486.aspx


BEN Name: WILTON-LYNDEBORO COOP SCH DIST

SAU63

FCC Form 471: 181042103

BEN: 120925 Wave: 12

3. Invoice USAC

• If you (the applicant) are invoicing USAC: You must pay your service provider(s) the

full cost for the services you receive and file the FCC Form 472, the Billed Entity Applicant

Reimbursement (BEAR) Form, to invoice USAC for reimbursement of the discounted amount.

• If your service provider(s) is invoicing USAC: The service provider(s) must provide

services, bill the applicant for the non-discounted share, and file the FCC Form 474, the

Service Provider Invoice (SPI) form, to invoice USAC for reimbursement for the discounted

portion of costs. Every funding year, service providers must file an FCC Form 473, the

Service Provider Annual Certification Form, to be able to submit invoices and to receive

disbursements.

• To receive an invoice deadline extension, the applicant or service provider must request

an extension on or before the last date to invoice. If you anticipate, for any reason, that

invoices cannot be filed on time, USAC will grant a one-time, 120-day invoice deadline

extension if timely requested.

How to Appeal or Request a Waiver of a Decision
You can appeal or request a waiver of a decision in this letter within 60 calendar days of the date of this
letter. Failure to meet this deadline will result in an automatic dismissal of your appeal or waiver request.

Note: The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) will not accept appeals of USAC decisions that
have not first been appealed to USAC. However, if you are seeking a waiver of E-rate program rules, you
must submit your request to the FCC and not to USAC. USAC is not able to waive the E-rate program
rules.

• To submit your appeal to USAC, visit the Appeals section in the E-rate Productivity Center (EPC)

and provide the required information. USAC will reply to your appeal submissions to confirm receipt.

Visit USAC’s website for additional information on submitting an appeal to USAC, including step-by-

step instructions.

• To request a waiver of the FCC’s rules, please submit it to the FCC in proceeding number

CC Docket No. 02-6 using the Electronic Comment Filing System (ECFS). Include your contact

information, a statement that your filing is a waiver request, identifying information, the FCC rule(s) for

which you are seeking a waiver, a full description of the relevant facts that you believe support your

waiver request and any related relief, and any supporting documentation.

For appeals to USAC or to the FCC, be sure to keep a copy of your entire appeal, including any
correspondence and documentation, and provide a copy to the affected service provider(s).

June 28, 2018 2

http://usac.org/sl/applicants/step06/form-472-filing.aspx
http://usac.org/sl/service-providers/step05/474-filing.aspx
http://usac.org/sl/service-providers/step03/473-filing.aspx
https://portal.usac.org/suite
http://usac.org/about/about/program-integrity/appeals.aspx
https://www.fcc.gov/ecfs/filings


BEN Name: WILTON-LYNDEBORO COOP SCH DIST

SAU63

FCC Form 471: 181042103

BEN: 120925 Wave: 12

Obligation to Pay Non-Discount Portion
Applicants are required to pay the non-discount portion of the cost of the eligible products and/or services
to their service providers. Service providers are required to bill applicants for the non-discount portion
of costs for the eligible products and/or services. The FCC stated that requiring applicants to pay the
non-discounted share of costs ensures efficiency and accountability in the program. If using the BEAR
invoicing method, the applicant must pay the service provider in full (the non-discount plus discount
portion) before seeking reimbursement from USAC. If using the SPI invoicing method, the service
provider must first bill the applicant before invoicing USAC.

Notice on Rules and Funds Availability
The applicants’ receipt of funding commitments is contingent on their compliance with all statutory,
regulatory, and procedural requirements of the Schools and Libraries Program and the FCC’s rules.
Applicants who have received funding commitments continue to be subject to audits and other reviews
that USAC and/or the FCC may undertake to assure that committed funds are being used in accordance
with such requirements. USAC may be required to reduce or cancel funding commitments that were not
issued in accordance with such requirements, whether due to action or inaction of USAC, the applicant, or
the service provider. USAC, and other appropriate authorities (including but not limited to the FCC), may
pursue enforcement actions and other means of recourse to collect improperly disbursed funds.

June 28, 2018 3



BEN Name: WILTON-LYNDEBORO COOP SCH DIST

SAU63

FCC Form 471: 181042103

BEN: 120925 Wave: 12

Funding Commitment Decision Overview
Funding Year 2018

Application Comments for FCC Form 471: #181042103
The applicant did not submit any RAL corrections.

Funding Commitment Decision Overview

Funding Request
Number (FRN)

Service Provider Name Amount
Requested

Amount
Committed

Status

1899082223 Comcast Business

Communications

$18,620.06 $18,620.06 Funded

1899082226 Wilton Telephone Company $5,400.00 $5,400.00 Funded

June 28, 2018 4



BEN Name: WILTON-LYNDEBORO COOP SCH DIST

SAU63

FCC Form 471: 181042103

BEN: 120925 Wave: 12

FRN

1899082223

Service Type

Data Transmission and/or Internet

Access

Status

Funded

Dollars Committed

Monthly Cost One-time Cost

Months of Service 12

Total Eligible Recurring Charges $31,033.44 Total Eligible One Time Charges $0.00

Total Pre-discount Charges $31,033.44

Discount Rate 60.00%

Committed Amount $18,620.06

Dates

Service Start Date 7/1/2018

Contract Expiration Date 6/30/2020

Contract Award Date 4/21/2017

Service Delivery Deadline 6/30/2019

Expiration Date (All Extensions)

Service Provider and Contract Information

Service Provider Comcast Business

Communications

SPIN (498ID) 143003990

Contract Number

Account Number

Establishing FCC Form 470 170070249

Consultant Information

Consultant Name Michele Quinn

Consultant's Employer Educational Consortium for Telecom Savings

CRN 16024807

Funding Commitment Decision Comments

MR1: Approved as submitted.

June 28, 2018 5



BEN Name: WILTON-LYNDEBORO COOP SCH DIST

SAU63

FCC Form 471: 181042103

BEN: 120925 Wave: 12

FRN

1899082226

Service Type

Data Transmission and/or Internet

Access

Status

Funded

Dollars Committed

Monthly Cost One-time Cost

Months of Service 12

Total Eligible Recurring Charges $9,000.00 Total Eligible One Time Charges $0.00

Total Pre-discount Charges $9,000.00

Discount Rate 60.00%

Committed Amount $5,400.00

Dates

Service Start Date 7/1/2018

Contract Expiration Date 6/30/2020

Contract Award Date 5/8/2017

Service Delivery Deadline 6/30/2019

Expiration Date (All Extensions)

Service Provider and Contract Information

Service Provider Wilton Telephone

Company

SPIN (498ID) 143001301

Contract Number

Account Number

Establishing FCC Form 470 170070249

Consultant Information

Consultant Name Michele Quinn

Consultant's Employer Educational Consortium for Telecom Savings

CRN 16024807

Funding Commitment Decision Comments

MR1: Approved as submitted.

June 28, 2018 6



  

NH Department of Education 

Division of Education Analytics and Resources 

Office of School Finance 

November 15, 2018 

 

FY2020 Adequate Education Aid 
 

How the Cost of an Opportunity for an Adequate Education is Determined 

 

RSA 198:38 through 198:42 specify how aid is calculated and distributed. 

 

Students: 

Adequacy Aid is calculated using the Average Daily Membership (ADM) of the students who reside 

within a municipality.  A full-time student enrolled in school for the entire year has an ADM of 1.00.  

If a student moves mid-year, he is counted as a fractional ADM in each municipality.  For FY2020 

Adequacy Aid, school year 2018-2019 ADM will be used. 

 

The total ADM for a municipality consists of: 

 Students who attended a school operated by their resident district. 

 Students tuitioned by the resident district to a district-operated school in NH or another state. 

 Students tuitioned by the resident district to a non-public school, such as a special education 

program. 

 Kindergarten students are counted as no more than .50 ADM (half-day program). 

 Home school students enrolled in high school academic courses at the rate of 0.15 ADM per 

course.  These students will be counted only if the appropriation has excess funds available.  

 Preschool students are not included. 

 Charter schools students are not included, except as provided for in RSA 194-B:11. 

 In the first year a student receives an education tax scholarship to attend a private school or is 

home schooled, the resident school district will be notified that, for the purpose of Adequacy 

Aid only, this student will be removed from the prior year’s ADM. 

 

Cost of Adequacy: 

Every two years the base per pupil cost and additional costs for certain students are adjusted for 

inflation and used for both years of the State’s biennium.  RSA 198:40-d specifies that the US Bureau 

of Labor Statistics’ Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, Northeast Region, special 

aggregate index of “services less medical care services” will be used to make the adjustments.  For the 

biennium starting July 1, 2019, this inflation adjustment is an increase of 2%.   

 

For FY2020 and FY2021, the base per pupil rate is $3,708.78 per ADM.  Adequacy includes an 

additional rate for certain students as follows: 

o $1,854.38 for a free or reduced-price meal eligible student.  This eligibility 

determination is based on household income not participation in a lunch program.  

Students from households receiving TANF or SNAP are automatically eligible.  Others 

are certified if parents/guardians provide income information. 

o $1,995.21 for a special education student who has an individualized educational plan 

(IEP). 

o $725.63 for an English Language Learner receiving English Language instruction. 

Students who have advanced to the monitoring stage are not included. 

 



  

o $725.63 for each 3
rd

 grade pupil whose achievement score on the state assessment for 

reading was below the proficient level, provided the student is not already counted in 

any of the above three categories.  Students who did not take the test are not counted. 

 

For each municipality, the cost of an opportunity for an adequate education is calculated by applying 

the base rate and applicable additional rates to the ADM of each student. 

 

How Adequacy Grants are Determined 

 

Statewide Education Property Tax Assessment: 

Each December, the Department of Revenue Administration determines the minimum tax rate needed 

to raise at least $363 million from the Statewide Education Property Tax (SWEPT) for the following 

school year.  The tax rate, rounded to the nearest one-half cent, is applied to equalized valuations 

without utilities.  (RSA 76:3 and RSA 76:8.)  Municipalities collect the SWEPT and send the total 

assessment amount directly to its school district(s).  Within cooperative districts the assessment 

amount is credited to the individual towns.  While municipalities are responsible for collecting and 

distributing this tax revenue, SWEPT is a state tax, not a local tax.  For FY2020, a tax rate of $2.06 per 

thousand will be applied to April 1, 2017 equalized values. 

 

Preliminary Grant: 

When the SWEPT assessment is subtracted from the cost of adequacy the balance is the preliminary 

grant.  If SWEPT is more than the cost of adequacy then the preliminary grant is zero.   

 

Stabilization Grant: 

When a new funding formula was enacted for FY2012, to ease the impact on municipalities facing a 

decrease in aid, the Legislature utilized a stabilization grant to cover the decreases. Not all 

municipalities received a stabilization grant in 2012.  For FY2020, the stabilization grant with be 84% 

of the 2012 amount.  This grant is being phased out over 25 years by reducing the rate by 4% each 

year. 

 

Inclusion of Home-Schooled Course Credit: 

Prior to the final payment of adequacy grants in April, the Department of Education will determine if 

the appropriation allocated in the state budget for adequacy aid is sufficient to allow for inclusion of an 

ADM credit of 0.15 for each enrollment is an academic course by a home-schooled student. 

 

Total Grant: 

A municipality’s total grant is the sum of its preliminary and stabilization grants.  For the final 

calculation in the spring of 2020, the total grant will be no less than 95% of the November 15, 2018 

estimate, and will include home-schooled course credit funding if applicable.   

 

Publication and Payment Schedule 

 

Publication Schedule for Adequacy Aid 

The first estimate is published on the November 15
th

 that precedes the beginning of the fiscal year.  

ADM is estimated using data from the second preceding school year and applying adjustments for 

anticipated enrollment increases or decreases.  This estimate is generally used to set school budgets.   

 



  

The second estimate is made on October 1
st
 of the fiscal year using preliminary ADM data for the 

previous school year. This estimate is used by the Department of Revenue Administration to set school 

tax rates.  

 

The final calculation is usually made by March using the prior year’s ADM that has been closely 

reviewed.  For FY2020, adjusted 2017-2018 school year ADM data will be used for the first estimate, 

and 2018-2019 data will be used for the second estimate and final determination. 

 

Grant Payment Schedule: 

The first payment of 20% by September 1
st 

is based on the first estimate from the Nov 15
th

 of the 

previous year. The second and third payments of 20% by November 1
st
 and 30% by January 1

st
 are 

based on the October 1
st
 “final” estimate.  The final payment (of approximately 30%) is made by April 

1
st
 and based on finalized ADM data. 

 

 



Account Source Estimated Revenue Change Amount
Estimated Revenue 

Adjusted

Local Sources

1300-1349 Tuition $12,150 $0 $12,150

1400-1449 Transportation Fees $0 $0 $0

1500-1599 Earnings on Investments $1,000 $0 $1,000

1600-1699 Food Service Sales $0 $0 $0

1700-1799 Student Activities $0 $0 $0

1800-1899 Community Service Activities $0 $0 $0

1900-1999 Other Local Sources $22,382 $0 $22,382

Local Sources Subtotal $35,532 $0 $35,532

State Sources

3210 School Building Aid $128,000 $0 $128,000

3215 Kindergarten Building Aid $0 $0 $0

3220 Kindergarten Aid $55,000 $0 $55,000

3230 Catastrophic Aid $135,528 $0 $135,528

3240-3249 Vocational Aid $3,000 $0 $3,000

3250 Adult Education $0 $0 $0

3260 Child Nutrition $0 $0 $0

3270 Driver Education $0 $0 $0

3290-3299 Other State Sources $1,000 $0 $1,000

State Sources Subtotal $322,528 $0 $322,528

Federal Sources

4100-4539 Federal Program Grants $0 $0 $0

4540 Vocational Education $0 $0 $0

4550 Adult Education $0 $0 $0

4560 Child Nutrition $0 $0 $0

4570 Disabilities Programs $0 $0 $0

4580 Medicaid Distribution $65,000 $0 $65,000

4590-4999 Other Federal Sources (non-4810) $0 $0 $0

4810 Federal Forest Reserve $0 $0 $0

Federal Sources Subtotal $65,000 $0 $65,000

Wilton-Lyndeborough
For the period beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019

In accordance with RSA 21-J:35, the department is notifying you of the following changes in the estimated revenues 
used in computing the tax rate.

Page 1 of 3453100 Wilton-Lyndeborough 2018 MS-24-R  10/15/2018 5:16:30 PM

New Hampshire
Department of

Revenue Administration

2018
MS-24-R

Revised Estimated Revenues Adjusted



Account Source Estimated Revenue Change Amount
Estimated Revenue 

Adjusted

Other Financing Sources

5110-5139 Sale of Bonds or Notes $0 $0 $0

5140 Reimbursement Anticipation Notes $0 $0 $0

5221 Transfer from Food Service Special Revenue Fund $215,000 $0 $215,000

5222 Transfer from Other Special Revenue Funds $258,652 $0 $258,652

5230 Transfer from Capital Project Funds $0 $0 $0

5251 Transfer from Capital Reserve Funds $0 $0 $0

5252 Transfer from Expendable Trust Funds $0 $0 $0

5253 Transfer from Non-Expendable Trust Funds $0 $0 $0

5300-5699 Other Financing Sources $0 $0 $0

9997 Supplemental Appropriation (Contra) $0 $0 $0

Other Financing Sources Subtotal $473,652 $0 $473,652

Total Revised Estimated Revenues and Credits $896,712 $0 $896,712

Page 2 of 3453100 Wilton-Lyndeborough 2018 MS-24-R  10/15/2018 5:16:30 PM

New Hampshire
Department of

Revenue Administration

2018
MS-24-R

Revised Estimated Revenues Adjusted



Estimated Change Amount
State 

Adjusted

Subtotal of Revenues $896,712 $0 $896,712

Unassigned Fund Balance (MS-25) $121,595 $23,238 $144,833

Less Voted from Fund Balance $0 $0 $0

Less Fund Balance to Reduce Taxes $0 $144,833 $144,833

Fund Balance Retained $121,595 ($121,595) $0

Total Revenues and Credits $896,712 $144,833 $1,041,545

Assessment Overview
Total Appropriations $12,529,005

Total Revenues and Credits $1,041,545

Net Assessment $11,487,460

Explanation of Adjustments
Account Reason for Adjustment Warrant Number

Page 3 of 3453100 Wilton-Lyndeborough 2018 MS-24-R  10/15/2018 5:16:30 PM

New Hampshire
Department of

Revenue Administration

2018
MS-24-R

Revised Estimated Revenues Summary









NH Department of Education
Office of School Finance

FY2OI 9 Cooperative District Apportionment
271-3876

October 15, 2018

Wilton Lyndeborough Coop

Amount to Apportion (MS-24) 11,487,460
Less:

State Education Tax 1,186,671
Equitable Education Grants 1,214,038

2,400,709
To be raised from local taxes 9,086,751

Apportionment of Local Taxes: Local Tax
Apportioned Less State Aid Assessment

Lyndeborough 3,266,900 653,331 2,613,569
Wilton 8,220,560 1,747,378 6,473,182

11487,460 2,400,709 9,086,751

Prepared by: ~° /~/( ~
Financial Analyst ‘ Date ‘

Reviewed by~~ ~ IC -I~~/7
BuØ~ess Analyst ‘ Date

. ~1 /0 ~/≤—f~
Director D ‘ ‘on’ o rogram Support Date
NH Dep- ment of Education

/ ~ (~ ,~
Director, Division of Municipal Services Date
NH Department of Revenue Administration



OFfice oF School Finance
NH Dept 01 Ed

FY2019 Cooperative Apportionment

Wilton Lyndeborough Coop
2018-2019

Budget (MS22 & 24) 12 529005/’
Less Local Rev & Cr (M524) 1,041,545
Total to Apportion (M624) 11 ,487,460v’~

Less 2014 Capital Exenses 604 889
Current Expenses 10,882,571
Plus Town Specific Rev 62,155
Curr. Expenses to Apportion 10944,726

Total
State Aid

653,331
1,747,378

Less
Current Expenditures Article 16 Town Specific
Rate Town Specific Revenues

Lyndeborough 0.2909745 3,184,636 96,564 14,300
Wilton 0~7090255 7.760.090 508,325 47,855

Total

Current & Capita! Expenses 50% on ADM 50% on Eq Va!
Effective July 1, 2014
Building Aid for pre-2014 projects credit to district.
2014 Captial projects charge Lyndeborough $96,564; Wilton balance, Building Aid N/A
Capital projects alert 2014 charge to district

State Aid

Lyndeborough
Wilton

Retained Tax
373165~’
813,506 V

Grant
280,166 V
933,872 ~

Article of Agreeniant # 16
2014 only Capital Year 4 of 20
Check bond schedule each year
No Building Aid for these projects

Principal +

Interest
Lyndeborough 96,564’ $96,564 for 20 yrs

Wilton 508,325 balance
604 889~2,400,709Total 1 186671 ~ I 214 03B~

ADM16~.17
As Reported 2016 Combined %

312012018 AOM % Equal Va! Equal Va! % for Current Exp
Lyndeborough 14807v 0267443 174066 117~ 0314506 02909745
Wilton 405 58, 0 732557 379 392 871 ~ 0 685494 0 7090255
Total 553 65~, 1000000 55345898& 1000000 10000000

1 0000000

~pecific Revenue
Keno/Kinder Adequacy Adj Total

14,300 -‘ 14,300
407O0~’ 7,155 47,855
55,000/ 7,155 62,155

10,944,726 604,889~.

Total Less Final
Apportioned State Aid

3,266,900 653,331
8,220,560 1,747,378

Prepared by 10/15/2018 mw
Reviewed by ~//JVc~ rn*

Local Tax
Assessment

2.613,569
6,473,182

62,155 11,487,460 ~ 2,400,709 9,086,751

Final State Aid & Local Assessment
Should match Total to Apportion MS24

1~ 11,487,460f

Page 1



DRAFT
New Hampshire Department of Education 

Division of Learner Support

Bureau of Student Support

101 Pleasant Street, Concord NH 03301

DRAFT

 

 

District

ID

State Total: 839 32,957,795.71  89.00    5,707,140.51  85,049,155.73  32,073,377.08  22,317,664.79        
9 Allenstown 118,168.87           143,920.50         393,553.16           238,455.60           165,924.91                  

15 Alton 55,863.26             -                       111,176.84           44,690.61             31,097.13                    
17 Amherst 471,243.39           -                       1,245,633.48        376,994.71           262,324.78                  
19 Andover 72,625.79             -                       233,450.02           58,100.63             40,428.25                    
29 Auburn 335,835.80           37,491.70           760,522.55           306,160.34           213,036.00                  
33 Barrington 173,438.17           -                       759,546.05           138,750.54           96,546.99                    
39 Bath 18,028.65             -                       73,342.23             14,422.92             10,035.92                    
41 Bedford 926,147.46           81,190.00           2,943,312.69        822,107.97           572,048.59                  
51 Berlin 5,398.02                -                       60,711.60             4,318.42                3,004.89                      
57 Bow 577,276.47           48,208.82           1,399,875.38        510,030.00           354,894.92                  
63 Brentwood 71,434.82             -                       126,748.40           57,147.86             39,765.28                    
71 Brookline 92,575.54             -                       203,202.70           74,060.43             51,533.58                    
79 Candia 73,169.40             -                       294,423.71           58,535.52             40,730.86                    
93 Chester 149,453.33           22,622.02           338,016.08           142,184.68           98,936.58                    
95 Chesterfield 15,465.28             -                       126,092.44           12,372.22             8,608.98                      
99 Chichester 31,241.99             -                       86,555.57             24,993.59             17,391.33                    
101 Claremont 525,174.66           2,060.39             1,190,997.99        422,200.12           293,780.12                  
105 Colebrook 102,725.22           37,563.72           195,602.52           119,743.90           83,321.57                    
111 Concord 376,237.07           -                       1,019,163.38        300,989.65           209,438.07                  
112 Contoocook Valley 227,782.01           3,489.09             507,838.99           185,714.70           129,226.13                  
113 Conway 296,527.27           29,692.28           713,414.60           266,914.10           185,727.23                  
115 Cornish 56,035.04             -                       111,348.62           44,828.03             31,192.75                    
117 Croydon 33,146.37             -                       88,459.95             26,517.10             18,451.43                    
127 Deerfield 201,452.34           -                       422,706.65           161,161.87           112,141.50                  
131 Derry Cooperative 1,584,833.73        99,586.02           4,781,980.13        1,367,453.00        951,516.82                  
141 Dover 692,671.23           59,328.82           1,858,271.61        613,465.80           426,868.81                  
142 Dresden 226,370.59           154,629.94         600,258.96           335,726.41           233,609.00                  
149 Dunbarton 71,075.66             -                       347,643.55           56,860.53             39,565.34                    

       FY2019 Special Education Aid Estimates

FY2019 Proration 

69.583%

Student 

Count
CostDistrict Name

Student 

Count
Cost Total Expended Entitlement

Expenditures From
3 1/2 - 10 Times Over 10 Times
State Average State Average

Expenditures Over

Prepared by Lisa Morrissette 9/28/18 Page 1 of 4



DRAFT
New Hampshire Department of Education 

Division of Learner Support

Bureau of Student Support

101 Pleasant Street, Concord NH 03301

DRAFT

 

 

District

ID

FY2019 Proration 

69.583%

Student 

Count
CostDistrict Name

Student 

Count
Cost Total Expended Entitlement

Expenditures From
3 1/2 - 10 Times Over 10 Times
State Average State Average

Expenditures Over

165 Epping 108,671.70           -                       440,553.17           86,937.36             60,493.75                    
167 Epsom 168,113.54           -                       378,935.71           134,490.83           93,582.95                    
173 Exeter 13,522.42             -                       68,836.00             10,817.94             7,527.46                      
172 Exeter Regional Cooperative 692,719.32           51,701.01           1,518,810.42        605,876.47           421,587.91                  
174 Fall Mountain Regional 295,699.12           4,004.22             686,898.39           240,563.52           167,391.66                  
175 Farmington 167,831.05           -                       420,387.31           134,264.84           93,425.70                    
185 Franklin 93,725.22             -                       259,665.95           74,980.18             52,173.57                    
189 Fremont 164,756.98           203,501.97         478,886.11           335,307.55           233,317.54                  
191 Gilford 115,855.32           -                       613,677.52           92,684.26             64,492.62                    
195 Gilmanton 22,245.19             -                       132,872.35           17,796.15             12,383.12                    
199 Goffstown 291,533.86           22,014.90           645,430.23           255,241.99           177,605.41                  
203 Gorham Randolph Shelburne Cooperative 205,450.44           49,524.18           365,601.78           213,884.53           148,827.59                  
208 Governor Wentworth Regional 319,042.99           14,457.36           776,008.98           269,691.75           187,660.01                  
211 Grantham 116,863.08           94,950.51           322,440.75           188,440.97           131,123.16                  
215 Greenland 193,160.99           -                       359,101.72           154,528.79           107,525.99                  
223 Hampstead 321,500.61           97,542.42           861,551.66           354,742.91           246,841.28                  
225 Hampton 308,667.21           -                       585,235.10           246,933.77           171,824.28                  
233 Hanover 68,522.79             -                       278,244.21           54,818.23             38,144.25                    
238 Haverhill Cooperative 122,628.63           -                       343,882.94           98,102.90             68,263.09                    
245 Henniker 128,634.84           19,678.72           258,940.72           122,586.59           85,299.61                    
251 Hillsboro-Deering Cooperative 157,449.68           24,830.48           292,907.32           150,790.22           104,924.58                  
255 Hinsdale 75,163.67             -                       407,045.14           60,130.94             41,841.00                    
257 Holderness 46,093.90             -                       101,407.48           36,875.12             25,658.87                    
259 Hollis 4,939.60                -                       9,497.44                3,951.68                2,749.70                      
260 Hollis/Brookline Cooperative 640,251.90           322,561.38         1,456,077.65        834,762.90           580,854.29                  
261 Hooksett 377,305.52           -                       1,483,577.08        301,844.42           210,032.84                  
263 Hopkinton 230,540.86           48,873.53           511,100.84           233,306.22           162,341.81                  
267 Hudson 607,285.48           172,615.41         1,333,036.67        658,443.79           458,165.91                  
274 Jaffrey-Rindge Cooperative 513,981.50           153,328.25         1,275,759.11        564,513.45           392,806.22                  
275 John Stark Regional 73,513.69             -                       184,140.85           58,810.95             40,922.51                    
276 Kearsarge Regional 514,644.89           542,453.89         1,444,293.83        954,169.80           663,941.37                  

Prepared by Lisa Morrissette 9/28/18 Page 2 of 4



DRAFT
New Hampshire Department of Education 

Division of Learner Support

Bureau of Student Support

101 Pleasant Street, Concord NH 03301

DRAFT

 

 

District

ID

FY2019 Proration 

69.583%

Student 

Count
CostDistrict Name

Student 

Count
Cost Total Expended Entitlement

Expenditures From
3 1/2 - 10 Times Over 10 Times
State Average State Average

Expenditures Over

279 Keene 939,319.12           262,995.22         2,197,958.75        1,014,450.52        705,886.58                  
285 Laconia 47,294.21             -                       102,607.79           37,835.37             26,327.04                    
295 Lebanon 320,981.91           255,689.49         908,552.87           512,475.02           356,596.24                  
315 Litchfield 156,343.98           -                       432,911.87           125,075.18           87,031.25                    
317 Littleton 99,797.52             -                       210,424.68           79,838.02             55,553.80                    
319 Londonderry 614,265.08           56,798.43           1,279,512.87        548,210.49           381,462.11                  
327 Lyme 102,725.22           11,071.67           169,110.47           93,251.85             64,887.57                    
333 Madison 203,578.50           7,029.46             321,235.12           169,892.26           118,216.38                  
335 Manchester 1,847,057.47        254,421.67         4,369,335.84        1,732,067.65        1,205,227.16              
339 Marlborough 67,215.22             -                       288,469.53           53,772.18             37,416.37                    
341 Marlow 48,411.42             -                       103,725.00           38,729.14             26,948.95                    
342 Mascenic Regional 72,197.05             -                       182,824.21           57,757.64             40,189.58                    
343 Mascoma Valley Regional 153,833.09           -                       485,714.56           123,066.47           85,633.52                    
351 Merrimack 967,565.20           430,017.42         3,222,930.70        1,204,069.58        837,829.49                  
352 Merrimack Valley 245,694.98           -                       873,139.02           196,555.98           136,769.84                  
357 Milford 224,296.89           -                       722,119.09           179,437.51           124,858.27                  
359 Milton 55,340.99             -                       276,595.30           44,272.79             30,806.40                    
363 Monadnock Regional 529,109.39           -                       1,192,872.33        423,287.51           294,536.77                  
367 Mont Vernon 44,672.09             -                       210,612.82           35,737.67             24,867.40                    
369 Moultonborough 102,725.22           141,216.98         299,255.78           223,397.16           155,446.77                  
371 Nashua 1,203,718.51        131,343.88         3,326,351.20        1,094,318.69        761,461.37                  
377 New Boston 95,239.64             -                       261,180.37           76,191.71             53,016.59                    
387 Newfields 18,944.62             -                       74,258.20             15,155.70             10,545.81                    
388 Newfound Area 74,321.49             -                       184,948.65           59,457.19             41,372.18                    
399 Newmarket 325,544.21           67,139.83           724,565.51           327,575.20           227,937.13                  
401 Newport 335,508.85           11,608.43           844,939.48           280,015.51           194,843.60                  
405 North Hampton 102,725.22           7,649.98             165,688.78           89,830.16             62,506.65                    
411 Northwood 128,109.85           -                       349,364.16           102,487.88           71,314.29                    
413 Nottingham 104,135.64           -                       214,762.80           83,308.51             57,968.68                    
423 Oyster River Cooperative 122,182.01           -                       454,063.48           97,745.61             68,014.47                    
425 Pelham 604,208.34           51,449.30           1,540,674.89        534,815.97           372,141.78                  

Prepared by Lisa Morrissette 9/28/18 Page 3 of 4



DRAFT
New Hampshire Department of Education 

Division of Learner Support

Bureau of Student Support

101 Pleasant Street, Concord NH 03301

DRAFT

 

 

District

ID

FY2019 Proration 

69.583%

Student 

Count
CostDistrict Name

Student 

Count
Cost Total Expended Entitlement

Expenditures From
3 1/2 - 10 Times Over 10 Times
State Average State Average

Expenditures Over

427 Pembroke 42,883.77             -                       209,243.30           34,307.02             23,871.90                    
428 Pemi-Baker Regional 192,014.34           15,773.41           345,618.13           169,384.88           117,863.33                  
435 Piermont 102,725.22           131,016.30         289,055.10           213,196.48           148,348.82                  
439 Pittsfield 262,481.23           200,623.76         884,623.88           410,608.74           285,714.48                  
441 Plainfield 148,693.74           132,000.01         391,320.91           250,955.00           174,622.39                  
447 Plymouth 127,750.46           -                       238,377.62           102,200.37           71,114.23                    
449 Portsmouth 200,897.17           34,151.00           677,556.80           194,868.74           135,595.80                  
453 Raymond 255,889.63           -                       532,457.52           204,711.70           142,444.84                  
461 Rochester 1,193,428.01        8,773.20             3,156,866.90        963,515.61           670,444.47                  
463 Rollinsford 63,510.80             -                       174,137.96           50,808.64             35,354.25                    
467 Rumney 1,569.56                -                       84,993.50             1,255.65                873.72                          
471 Rye 77,852.08             -                       133,165.66           62,281.66             43,337.54                    
473 Salem 870,268.86           235,006.13         2,100,919.40        931,221.22           647,973.02                  
476 Sanborn Regional 376,225.62           27,815.62           735,922.71           328,796.12           228,786.68                  
485 Seabrook 148,555.03           14,604.65           273,786.84           133,448.67           92,857.79                    
486 Shaker Regional 65,559.56             -                       286,813.87           52,447.65             36,494.72                    
491 Somersworth 415,828.94           -                       803,023.99           332,663.15           231,477.49                  
493 Souhegan Cooperative 325,647.36           22,994.15           901,777.29           283,512.04           197,276.60                  
503 Stoddard 15,686.53             -                       71,000.11             12,549.22             8,732.14                      
511 Stratham 111,865.19           -                       222,492.35           89,492.15             62,271.45                    
513 Sunapee 298,309.39           46,504.58           510,754.70           285,152.09           198,417.80                  
534 Timberlane Regional 1,026,529.14        30,326.32           2,329,067.76        851,549.63           592,535.02                  
539 Unity 198,515.39           37,011.72           346,154.27           195,824.03           136,260.52                  
555 Weare 98,660.82             -                       209,287.98           78,928.66             54,921.04                    
563 Westmoreland 36,871.49             -                       92,185.07             29,497.19             20,525.07                    
568 White Mountains Regional 102,725.22           37,195.46           195,234.26           119,375.64           83,065.32                    
572 Wilton-Lyndeboro Cooperative 152,920.30           74,675.40           393,536.43           197,011.64           137,086.90                  
575 Windham 609,846.28           14,209.02           1,453,758.97        502,086.04           349,367.26                  
581 Winnacunnet Cooperative 658,125.90           414,206.49         1,483,539.07        940,707.21           654,573.67                  
582 Winnisquam Regional 77,182.33             -                       243,123.06           61,745.86             42,964.71                    

Prepared by Lisa Morrissette 9/28/18 Page 4 of 4



Based on 2017-18 ADM 

Data as of 9-13-18

New Hampshire Department of Education

Division of Program Support

Office of School Finance

Municipal Summary of Estimated Kindergarten Aid

FY2019 

October 1st, 2018

17-18  Full-Day 

Kindergarten

 Kindergarten 

Aid

ADM $1,100.00

State Total 9,781.22 10,759,345.74

Acworth 10.88 11,971.63

Albany 8.60 9,460.00

Alexandria 15.71 17,276.27

Allenstown 37.32 41,051.45

Alstead 16.99 18,687.79

Alton 36.55 40,209.73

Amherst 109.82 120,799.36

Andover 19.60 21,565.17

Antrim 26.52 29,171.78

Ashland 23.95 26,349.95

Atkinson 20.50 22,550.00

Auburn 0.00 0.00

Barnstead 60.85 66,935.11

Barrington 100.18 110,197.78

Bartlett 24.63 27,096.63

Bath 8.81 9,688.69

Bedford 0.00 0.00

Belmont 66.97 73,662.71

Bennington 19.94 21,937.85

Benton 0.00 0.00

Berlin 93.53 102,880.91

Bethlehem 26.50 29,147.91

Boscawen 40.94 45,034.77

Bow 86.08 94,688.44

Bradford 14.00 15,400.00

Brentwood 21.21 23,327.37

Bridgewater 5.10 5,610.00

Bristol 24.84 27,322.79

Brookfield 6.54 7,194.22

Brookline 51.17 56,285.68

Cambridge 0.00 0.00

Campton 29.29 32,223.29

Canaan 30.65 33,710.71

Candia 23.87 26,253.26

Canterbury 21.63 23,796.08

Carroll 3.31 3,642.21

Center Harbor 6.13 6,739.92

Charlestown 53.74 59,118.95

Chatham 4.41 4,852.21

Chester 0.00 0.00

Chesterfield 30.81 33,893.75

Chichester 16.21 17,832.21

Claremont 141.11 155,216.49

Clarksville 2.00 2,200.00

Colebrook 21.70 23,872.42

Columbia 2.00 2,200.00

NEW Concord 293.00 322,300.00

Conway 78.48 86,327.56

Cornish 9.01 9,906.27

Croydon 0.00 0.00

Dalton 6.00 6,600.00

Danbury 8.39 9,230.87

Danville 19.86 21,847.32

Deerfield 54.98 60,475.47

Deering 14.20 15,625.06

page 1 of 5



Based on 2017-18 ADM 

Data as of 9-13-18

New Hampshire Department of Education

Division of Program Support

Office of School Finance

Municipal Summary of Estimated Kindergarten Aid

FY2019 

October 1st, 2018

17-18  Full-Day 

Kindergarten

 Kindergarten 

Aid

ADM $1,100.00

State Total 9,781.22 10,759,345.74

Derry 143.71 158,082.10

Dix's Grant 0.00 0.00

Dixville 0.00 0.00

Dorchester 3.80 4,183.74

Dover 268.32 295,149.80

Dublin 4.25 4,673.46

Dummer 2.00 2,200.00

NEW Dunbarton 37.00 40,700.00

Durham 51.41 56,556.39

East Kingston 21.23 23,353.66

Easton 5.00 5,500.00

Eaton 2.00 2,200.00

Effingham 13.97 15,362.16

Ellsworth 0.00 0.00

Enfield 29.02 31,924.75

Epping 76.99 84,693.95

Epsom 0.00 0.00

Errol 0.44 488.18

NEW Exeter 139.00 152,900.00

Farmington 59.93 65,920.36

Fitzwilliam 22.63 24,892.45

Francestown 12.08 13,293.17

Franconia 10.41 11,446.16

Franklin 60.41 66,452.32

Freedom 7.00 7,700.00

Fremont 44.44 48,888.84

Gilford 64.64 71,099.93

Gilmanton 40.23 44,249.37

Gilsum 6.72 7,395.85

Goffstown 0.00 0.00

Gorham 17.95 19,744.45

Goshen 3.00 3,300.00

Grafton 8.00 8,800.00

Grantham 23.75 26,126.54

Greenfield 14.35 15,781.26

Greenland 47.09 51,803.84

Greenville 0.00 0.00

Groton 1.00 1,100.00

Hale's Location 0.00 0.00

Hampstead 52.95 58,244.89

Hampton 81.56 89,712.26

Hampton Falls 22.72 24,996.18

Hancock 11.86 13,043.69

Hanover 70.56 77,617.32

Harrisville 11.58 12,735.58

Hart's Location 0.00 0.00

Haverhill 55.02 60,518.59

Hebron 3.71 4,082.32

NEW Henniker 40.00 44,000.00

Hill 7.00 7,700.00

Hillsboro 48.60 53,456.26

Hinsdale 42.06 46,267.43

Holderness 15.00 16,500.00

Hollis 64.46 70,902.81

Hooksett 0.00 0.00

page 2 of 5



Based on 2017-18 ADM 

Data as of 9-13-18

New Hampshire Department of Education

Division of Program Support

Office of School Finance

Municipal Summary of Estimated Kindergarten Aid

FY2019 

October 1st, 2018

17-18  Full-Day 

Kindergarten

 Kindergarten 

Aid

ADM $1,100.00

State Total 9,781.22 10,759,345.74

Hopkinton 64.77 71,243.81

Hudson 0.00 0.00

Jackson 3.19 3,513.84

Jaffrey 54.32 59,753.98

Jefferson 4.37 4,809.42

Keene 176.17 193,789.31

Kensington 20.88 22,971.63

Kingston 51.67 56,841.62

Laconia 142.58 156,833.93

Lancaster 29.22 32,144.42

Landaff 3.00 3,300.00

Langdon 3.06 3,361.05

Lebanon 108.15 118,959.94

Lee 46.52 51,174.20

Lempster 9.58 10,533.16

Lincoln 6.79 7,467.68

Lisbon 28.10 30,906.92

NEW Litchfield 80.00 88,000.00

Littleton 61.16 67,277.21

Londonderry 0.00 0.00

Loudon 45.15 49,661.59

Lyman 2.00 2,200.00

NEW Lyme 17.00 18,700.00

NEW Lyndeborough 13.00 14,300.00

Madbury 21.88 24,064.48

Madison 21.27 23,399.42

Manchester 1020.79 1,122,870.98

Marlborough 13.14 14,452.79

Marlow 5.00 5,500.00

Martin's Location 0.00 0.00

NEW Mason 10.00 11,000.00

Meredith 64.15 70,565.33

NEW Merrimack 233.00 256,300.00

Middleton 17.71 19,483.86

Milan 12.00 13,200.00

NEW Milford 134.00 147,400.00

Millsfield 0.00 0.00

Milton 40.63 44,693.11

Monroe 6.39 7,027.79

Mont Vernon 30.38 33,417.23

Moultonborough 26.92 29,612.44

Nashua 759.74 835,710.37

Nelson 8.00 8,800.00

New Boston 0.00 0.00

Newbury 9.79 10,773.84

New Castle 5.00 5,500.00

New Durham 23.26 25,584.46

Newfields 22.00 24,200.00

New Hampton 12.00 13,200.00

Newington 7.42 8,158.37

New Ipswich 0.00 0.00

New London 15.65 17,214.89

Newmarket 80.65 88,710.93

Newport 48.07 52,879.31

Newton 41.77 45,948.65

page 3 of 5



Based on 2017-18 ADM 

Data as of 9-13-18

New Hampshire Department of Education

Division of Program Support

Office of School Finance

Municipal Summary of Estimated Kindergarten Aid

FY2019 

October 1st, 2018

17-18  Full-Day 

Kindergarten

 Kindergarten 

Aid

ADM $1,100.00

State Total 9,781.22 10,759,345.74

Northfield 0.00 0.00

North Hampton 36.64 40,308.51

Northumberland 22.86 25,147.21

Northwood 39.63 43,596.63

NEW Nottingham 46.00 50,600.00

Odell 0.00 0.00

Orange 1.76 1,940.40

Ossipee 32.54 35,794.22

Pelham 0.00 0.00

Pembroke 71.88 79,071.63

Penacook 65.36 71,894.35

Peterborough 54.99 60,484.71

Piermont 6.00 6,600.00

Pinkham's Grant 0.00 0.00

Pittsburg 4.66 5,129.30

Pittsfield 45.99 50,587.46

Plainfield 25.14 27,653.67

Plaistow 37.09 40,797.68

Plymouth 29.12 32,029.80

Portsmouth 153.25 168,569.50

Randolph 2.56 2,811.82

Raymond 71.01 78,112.43

Richmond 14.83 16,312.34

Rindge 60.33 66,366.74

Rochester 284.21 312,634.74

Rollinsford 23.36 25,697.87

Roxbury 2.00 2,200.00

Rumney 9.51 10,462.21

Rye 51.62 56,778.26

Salem 130.33 143,360.58

Salisbury 10.75 11,820.38

Sanbornton 0.00 0.00

Sandown 33.21 36,532.21

Sandwich 8.00 8,800.00

Seabrook 82.30 90,526.15

Sharon 3.00 3,300.00

Shelburne 0.00 0.00

Somersworth 114.67 126,139.75

South Hampton 0.00 0.00

Springfield 8.48 9,325.58

Stark 2.00 2,200.00

Stewartstown 8.75 9,621.92
Stoddard 11.18 12,296.68

Strafford 43.22 47,538.37

Stratford 7.00 7,700.00

Stratham 84.53 92,986.74

Sugar Hill 3.28 3,611.63

Sullivan 6.14 6,752.79

Success 0.00 0.00

Sunapee 26.84 29,522.79

Surry 1.45 1,595.00

Sutton 28.18 30,995.80

Swanzey 63.49 69,842.74

Tamworth 22.67 24,933.26

Temple 10.00 11,000.00

Thornton 25.88 28,463.27

page 4 of 5



Based on 2017-18 ADM 

Data as of 9-13-18

New Hampshire Department of Education

Division of Program Support

Office of School Finance

Municipal Summary of Estimated Kindergarten Aid

FY2019 

October 1st, 2018

17-18  Full-Day 

Kindergarten

 Kindergarten 

Aid

ADM $1,100.00

State Total 9,781.22 10,759,345.74

Tilton 0.00 0.00

Troy 19.68 21,650.53

Tuftonboro 13.60 14,957.47

Unity 6.16 6,771.16

Wakefield 47.93 52,726.63

Walpole 36.57 40,223.59

Warner 28.43 31,276.63

Warren 8.00 8,800.00

Washington 10.98 12,074.92

Waterville Valley 3.00 3,300.00

Weare 0.00 0.00

Webster 17.50 19,253.08

Wentworth 7.24 7,959.60

Wentworth's Location 0.00 0.00

Westmoreland 18.75 20,624.89

Whitefield 13.00 14,300.00

Wilmot 16.71 18,376.16

NEW Wilton 37.00 40,700.00

Winchester 42.12 46,328.37

Windham 0.00 0.00

Windsor 3.00 3,300.00

Wolfeboro 42.04 46,244.11

Woodstock 12.52 13,774.42

Orford 5.00 5,500.00

Charter Schools

Compass Classical Academy 21 23,089.00           

NEW Gate City Charter School for the Arts 19 20,900.00           

NEW Mill Falls Charter School 14.64 16,104.00           

Robert Frost Charter School 7 7,744.00             

Seacoast Charter School 38 41,800.00           

Surry Village Charter School 10 11,000.00           

The Birches Academy of Academics & Arts 25 27,500.00           

NEW Windham Academy Public Charter School 51 56,100.00           

Note New Full-Day Kindergarten Programs as of the 2018-2019 School Year were 

calculated based on first day enrollment.

page 5 of 5



DISTRICT 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018 2018 - 2019 2019 - 2020 2020 - 2021 2021 - 2022 2022 - 2023 2023 - 2024 2024 - 2025 2025 - 2026 2026 - 2027 2027 - 2028 2028 - 2029 2029 - 2030 2030 - 2031 2031 - 2032 2032 - 2033 2033 - 2034 2034 - 2035 2035 - 2036 2036 - 2037 2037 - 2038 2038 - 2039 2039 - 2040 2040 - 2041

Alton 407,192$         391,913$         454,795$         454,795$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Amherst 156,988$         157,402$         157,402$         139,402$         96,529$           145,416$         143,916$         143,916$         142,416$         140,916$         139,416$         139,416$         137,916$         85,416$           85,416$           85,416$           85,416$           83,916$           83,916$         83,916$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Barnstead 196,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         194,883$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Barrington 232,129$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         231,529$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Bartlett 12,509$           12,509$           12,509$           12,509$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Bedford 1,181,216$      1,140,439$      1,105,407$      1,067,384$      982,454$         949,758$         915,007$         885,228$         855,327$         667,425$         522,699$         497,717$         473,862$         451,701$         430,408$         409,357$         390,279$         371,303$         353,519$       336,793$       320,552$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Berlin 345,787$         314,185$         374,096$         311,513$         165,970$         171,989$         178,244$         123,287$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Bow 310,887$         310,887$         306,507$         313,324$         313,324$         313,324$         309,915$         323,549$         67,290$           67,290$           67,290$           67,290$           67,290$           67,290$           67,290$           67,290$           67,290$           67,290$           -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Brentwood 94,006$           91,031$           87,114$           84,262$           81,459$           78,672$           78,314$           72,314$           71,889$           69,128$           67,058$           64,985$           63,505$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Brookline 79,097$           82,388$           77,616$           74,032$           70,583$           67,504$           61,914$           51,566$           49,650$           46,987$           44,436$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Campton 197,187$         154,999$         154,999$         152,249$         152,249$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Chester 146,281$         146,281$         146,281$         144,781$         90,000$           90,000$           90,000$           90,000$           90,000$           84,600$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Chichester 34,002$           26,016$           26,016$           26,016$           26,016$           26,016$           26,016$           26,016$           26,016$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Claremont 99,000$           99,000$           99,000$           99,000$           99,000$           99,000$           99,000$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Colebrook 206,723$         206,723$         206,723$         263,216$         158,314$         158,314$         158,314$         158,314$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Concord 500,888$         485,888$         946,202$         1,308,562$      1,383,508$      1,383,508$      1,395,508$      1,097,174$      1,003,482$      1,116,217$      932,753$         932,753$         932,753$         932,753$         932,753$         932,753$         930,643$         928,534$         815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       815,309$       743,585$     

Contookcook Valley 1,228,066$      1,238,417$      1,480,587$      1,258,409$      558,187$         570,122$         678,112$         438,590$         440,790$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Conway 1,732,537$      1,506,117$      1,362,793$      1,060,664$      1,060,664$      1,060,664$      1,060,664$      1,060,664$      1,060,664$      1,060,664$      1,059,832$      1,059,832$      1,059,832$      1,059,832$      1,059,832$      -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Cornish 2,160$             2,160$             17,627$           17,627$           17,627$           15,467$           15,467$           15,467$           15,467$           15,467$           15,467$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Deerfield 27,322$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Derry 762,659$         762,659$         734,659$         734,659$         734,659$         564,659$         564,659$         564,659$         564,659$         564,659$         564,659$         462,659$         462,659$         462,659$         462,659$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Dover 656,936$         747,158$         732,061$         718,951$         709,050$         675,018$         665,067$         650,873$         616,673$         581,114$         529,088$         390,062$         389,462$         389,462$         383,462$         383,462$         368,722$         305,847$         227,809$       99,000$         99,000$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Dresden 692,616$         598,905$         570,182$         543,525$         518,801$         492,293$         467,272$         444,640$         425,010$         404,588$         385,074$         366,757$         348,882$         332,377$         315,904$         166,827$         23,094$           22,518$           -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Dunbarton 44,932$           55,432$           21,555$           18,172$           16,672$           16,672$           16,672$           16,672$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

East Kingston 48,926$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Epping 219,513$         192,256$         201,875$         211,875$         221,875$         231,875$         243,875$         255,875$         267,875$         279,875$         291,875$         301,875$         315,875$         327,875$         341,875$         357,875$         371,875$         -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Exeter 21,770$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Exeter Co-op 2,191,341$      2,135,133$      2,070,785$      1,693,574$      1,621,916$      1,551,848$      1,486,873$      1,425,594$      1,153,052$      1,109,820$      1,066,184$      1,025,645$      987,834$         942,747$         907,081$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Fall Mountain 57,548$           60,717$           560,388$         560,388$         557,118$         560,388$         558,751$         57,447$           57,038$           57,038$           57,038$           57,038$           57,038$           57,038$           57,038$           57,038$           -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Farmington 373,817$         373,817$         373,817$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Franklin 254,838$         181,944$         181,944$         181,944$         181,944$         181,944$         181,944$         181,944$         181,944$         181,944$         181,944$         81,944$           81,944$           81,944$           81,944$           81,944$           81,944$           -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Freedom 63,158$           63,158$           31,579$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Fremont 88,486$           88,486$           88,486$           88,486$           88,019$           77,253$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Gilford 370,350$         295,800$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         314,594$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Gilmanton 48,614$           50,114$           51,354$           54,354$           57,354$           60,354$           63,354$           65,158$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Goffstown 608,240$         591,443$         214,035$         397,939$         393,340$         321,250$         314,567$         282,696$         282,696$         539,196$         269,196$         266,946$         262,446$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Gorham 622,890$         622,890$         622,890$         622,890$         622,890$         549,117$         9,000$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Governor Wentworth 257,917$         1,708,940$      2,184,287$      2,031,556$      1,712,488$      1,626,096$      1,823,335$      1,387,033$      1,528,728$      1,455,481$      1,395,341$      1,337,255$      1,280,104$      1,226,023$      1,174,793$      1,127,677$      1,080,130$      1,035,603$      992,273$       950,676$       911,785$       874,286$       836,953$       803,102$       752,238$       715,709$       684,351$       655,865$       628,112$       601,885$       576,313$       -$             

Grantham 112,031$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$         107,513$       106,013$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Greenland 139,880$         109,908$         109,955$         110,005$         106,964$         106,964$         106,964$         106,964$         105,464$         105,464$         105,464$         105,464$         105,464$         105,464$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hampton 93,238$           99,238$           103,738$         109,738$         115,738$         123,238$         129,238$         138,238$         38,329$           39,829$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hanover 86,571$           170,412$         166,924$         163,776$         159,339$         156,037$         153,108$         85,116$           82,742$           80,252$           77,952$           75,807$           73,653$           71,643$           69,689$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Haverhill Cooperative 432,515$         437,756$         321,290$         207,512$         207,512$         191,672$         191,672$         189,753$         191,672$         191,672$         141,091$         141,091$         99,091$           75,250$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Henniker 64,148$           64,148$           64,148$           64,148$           64,148$           64,148$           64,148$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hill  19,473$           20,973$           20,973$           22,473$           23,973$           23,973$           25,473$           26,973$           28,473$           29,973$           29,973$           31,473$           32,973$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hillsboro-Deering 418,556$         368,556$         368,556$         368,556$         368,556$         369,132$         369,132$         342,731$         342,731$         342,731$         342,731$         342,731$         342,731$         342,731$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hinsdale 438,364$         436,735$         462,803$         462,803$         462,803$         462,803$         462,803$         462,803$         2,262,803$      912,803$         462,803$         462,803$         462,803$         462,803$         462,803$         462,803$         462,803$         -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Holderness 75,159$           75,159$           75,159$           75,159$           75,159$           75,159$           75,159$           75,159$           75,159$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hollis 65,763$           63,681$           61,928$           52,795$           51,272$           49,851$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hollis/Brookline 397,486$         395,323$         396,021$         395,639$         398,487$         400,514$         404,512$         341,984$         173,362$         181,362$         191,362$         199,362$         209,362$         219,362$         231,362$         241,362$         -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hooksett 310,500$         310,500$         330,172$         330,172$         330,172$         330,172$         330,172$         330,172$         330,172$         330,172$         328,672$         328,672$         328,672$         328,672$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hopkinton 178,441$         136,626$         141,126$         147,126$         143,286$         149,286$         156,786$         164,286$         173,286$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Hudson 325,934$         330,422$         368,158$         373,207$         378,559$         384,231$         390,238$         396,598$         403,329$         278,632$         278,632$         278,632$         129,950$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Inter-lakes  171,612$         175,983$         180,626$         133,237$         60,286$           65,834$           71,716$           77,949$           84,553$           91,545$           98,947$           106,779$         115,064$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Jackson 57,825$           55,766$           55,766$           55,766$           73,109$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Jaffrey-Rindge 434,456$         434,456$         373,098$         373,098$         325,898$         325,898$         325,898$         325,898$         325,898$         325,898$         325,898$         325,898$         325,898$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

John Stark Regional 281,648$         252,982$         220,315$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Kearsarge Regional 1,577,947$      1,484,238$      1,591,664$      1,143,719$      1,105,636$      1,012,532$      952,451$         750,359$         703,232$         724,929$         690,253$         663,910$         630,606$         607,489$         593,649$         567,537$         542,804$         433,101$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Keene 898,016$         1,411,950$      2,194,360$      2,061,675$      1,822,979$      1,790,646$      1,651,948$      1,589,988$      1,520,237$      1,442,430$      1,400,532$      786,680$         748,712$         712,990$         679,188$         647,696$         616,032$         586,231$         558,611$       530,999$       504,707$       480,302$       455,615$       433,047$       411,621$       391,235$       370,857$       351,438$       333,746$       315,923$       295,746$       -$             

Kensington 61,264$           61,264$           63,457$           63,457$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Laconia 816,713$         795,040$         702,402$         723,483$         773,935$         774,070$         766,480$         744,011$         722,120$         767,039$         693,263$         681,203$         670,195$         563,629$         487,005$         473,749$         461,915$         450,139$         437,775$       426,305$       415,609$       405,633$       351,714$       342,690$       333,734$       305,431$       297,168$       173,297$       -$               -$               -$               -$             

Lebanon 286,762$         311,289$         364,576$         925,874$         604,326$         643,599$         624,308$         642,316$         563,605$         526,592$         526,592$         526,592$         526,592$         526,592$         524,442$         524,442$         524,442$         524,442$         524,442$       524,442$       524,442$       524,442$       524,442$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Lisbon 100,439$         104,544$         107,744$         113,745$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Litchfield 270,050$         260,787$         260,787$         260,787$         260,787$         260,787$         166,287$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Littleton 91,807$           91,807$           220,141$         220,141$         220,141$         220,141$         220,141$         208,807$         208,807$         208,807$         208,807$         208,807$         208,807$         208,807$         117,000$         117,000$         117,000$         117,000$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Londonderry 647,427$         579,377$         539,695$         539,695$         539,695$         539,695$         550,195$         629,695$         479,695$         478,194$         476,694$         475,195$         473,695$         244,368$         160,368$         160,368$         160,368$         79,844$           79,844$         79,844$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Lyme 22,993$           22,993$           22,993$           22,993$           22,993$           22,993$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Madison 60,000$           60,000$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Manchester
e

1,998,399$      2,037,326$      1,918,122$      2,357,291$      2,449,987$      2,611,297$      2,740,961$      2,788,824$      2,959,317$      3,253,466$      3,188,795$      3,294,341$      3,281,660$      3,431,970$      3,113,496$      3,224,913$      3,072,294$      3,225,595$      3,330,054$   275,416$       284,261$       295,868$       143,630$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Marlborough 364,119$         348,581$         332,623$         317,649$         305,016$         294,068$         281,464$         270,644$         259,633$         240,840$         230,340$         222,102$         211,939$         203,148$         195,548$         186,847$         179,272$         171,654$         164,985$       148,030$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Mascenic Regional -$                 -$                 812,639$         810,885$         810,885$         810,885$         797,013$         797,013$         797,013$         797,013$         797,013$         797,013$         797,013$         797,013$         797,013$         797,013$         797,013$         797,011$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Mascoma Valley Reg. 166,444$         176,196$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Mason -$                 66,000$           66,000$           66,000$           86,424$           86,424$           86,424$           86,424$           86,424$           86,424$           84,774$           83,124$           83,124$           83,124$           83,124$           83,124$           83,124$           83,124$           83,124$         81,474$         81,474$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Merrimack 506,174$         511,919$         468,771$         393,533$         400,445$         407,788$         415,587$         423,866$         432,651$         441,973$         451,858$         321,000$         232,500$         232,500$         232,500$         232,500$         -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Merrimack Valley 2,012,548$      2,012,548$      1,347,331$      1,347,331$      1,347,331$      1,344,390$      19,975$           17,704$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Milan 70,000$           70,000$           78,251$           78,251$           76,251$           76,251$           76,251$           76,251$           76,251$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Milford 366,534$         366,534$         366,534$         286,225$         240,865$         240,865$         240,865$         240,865$         240,865$         240,865$         240,865$         239,365$         68,498$           68,498$           68,498$           68,498$           68,498$           68,498$           66,998$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Milton 235,088$         181,170$         180,047$         180,047$         180,047$         180,047$         177,047$         177,047$         177,047$         177,047$         177,047$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Monadnock Regional 143,930$         143,930$         630,701$         630,701$         630,701$         630,701$         630,701$         630,701$         560,204$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Mont Vernon 67,244$           30,013$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Moultonborough 224,922$         234,309$         242,982$         251,832$         261,383$         271,144$         281,299$         291,799$         302,849$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Nashua 2,680,079$      2,680,079$      2,738,170$      2,641,795$      2,557,795$      2,557,795$      2,469,049$      2,377,549$      2,281,549$      2,281,549$      2,280,049$      2,211,432$      1,255,190$      1,255,190$      674,690$         126,341$         126,341$         126,341$         126,341$       126,341$       126,341$       126,341$       126,341$       103,091$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

New Boston 56,686$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

New Castle -$                 809$                 809$                 809$                 809$                 809$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Newfields 22,922$           22,922$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Newfound 7,662$             -$                 97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           97,426$           -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Newmarket -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 540,932$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Newport 321,772$         321,772$         334,082$         334,082$         356,596$         339,730$         339,730$         339,730$         339,730$         339,730$         339,730$         336,744$         336,744$         336,744$         336,744$         336,744$         336,744$         336,744$         336,744$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

North Hampton 125,398$         132,898$         140,398$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Northumberland 17,506$           17,506$           29,506$           20,571$           20,571$           20,571$           20,571$           9,000$             9,000$             9,000$             9,000$             9,000$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Northwood 87,814$           87,814$           87,814$           87,814$           87,814$           87,814$           87,814$           87,814$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Nottingham 1,800$             1,800$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Oyster River 687,618$         678,618$         552,618$         523,742$         523,742$         523,742$         523,742$         523,742$         523,742$         523,742$         523,742$         523,742$         523,742$         523,742$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Pelham 310,500$         309,900$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Pembroke 358,633$         361,727$         480,541$         483,910$         490,426$         393,470$         199,370$         203,173$         239,356$         219,937$         224,476$         229,213$         234,156$         239,313$         115,585$         115,585$         115,585$         -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

New Hampshire Department of Education

Division of Program Support

School Safety and Facility Management

BUILDING AID DISTRIBUTION FY10-FY41

January 10, 2019



Piermont 12,000$           12,000$           1,710$             1,237$             1,350$             1,350$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Pittsburg 112,167$         112,167$         85,234$           85,234$           77,418$           77,418$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Pittsfield 95,636$           97,763$           97,763$           97,763$           100,163$         100,163$         89,923$           89,923$           89,923$           89,923$           89,923$           89,923$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Plainfield 45,967$           48,967$           31,502$           31,502$           13,834$           13,834$           10,502$           10,502$           9,002$             9,002$             9,002$             9,002$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Plymouth 18,826$           -$                 416,783$         420,000$         420,000$         420,000$         418,355$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Portsmouth
e

1,016,222$      1,319,096$      1,319,096$      1,319,096$      1,770,306$      1,770,306$      1,816,776$      1,812,693$      1,863,247$      1,863,247$      1,863,247$      1,863,247$      1,863,247$      1,863,247$      847,024$         847,024$         847,024$         847,024$         847,024$       847,024$       847,024$       547,024$       547,024$       547,024$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Profile 356,030$         356,030$         356,030$         356,030$         369,536$         369,536$         369,536$         369,536$         366,886$         366,886$         366,886$         366,886$         366,886$         366,886$         366,886$         366,886$         366,886$         366,886$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Raymond 503,664$         482,791$         466,116$         448,006$         428,193$         412,435$         394,962$         356,923$         341,486$         325,149$         310,510$         297,455$         284,432$         272,745$         260,996$         249,274$         238,656$         -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Rivendell 92,610$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           76,110$           -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Rochester 1,285,886$      1,024,228$      898,638$         840,077$         838,299$         837,629$         837,294$         126,133$         125,462$         124,791$         124,121$         123,450$         91,767$           88,887$           56,327$           56,327$           52,000$           52,000$           52,001$         52,001$         4,860$           4,860$           -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Rye 99,848$           116,412$         116,412$         116,412$         116,412$         116,412$         92,426$           92,426$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Salem 146,458$         146,458$         540,111$         540,888$         521,714$         521,714$         517,214$         401,941$         391,538$         391,538$         391,538$         391,538$         391,538$         391,538$         391,538$         391,538$         391,538$         391,538$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Sanborn Regional 915,208$         875,508$         839,151$         766,889$         724,753$         671,628$         640,677$         616,322$         588,887$         562,959$         537,829$         513,515$         491,033$         469,213$         448,440$         410,265$         -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Seabrook -$                 -$                 31,100$           30,500$           32,000$           33,500$           36,200$           37,602$           37,602$           37,602$           37,602$           37,602$           37,602$           42,702$           43,602$           43,602$           45,211$           -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Shaker Regional 265,601$         265,601$         287,520$         259,005$         21,919$           21,919$           21,919$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Somersworth 267,065$         950,764$         1,014,795$      834,865$         909,037$         879,309$         864,932$         847,077$         674,243$         654,048$         551,594$         530,264$         512,476$         486,345$         471,201$         453,818$         436,160$         418,310$         401,799$       385,864$       371,346$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Souhegan Cooperative 319,999$         311,580$         303,650$         238,187$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

South Hampton 37,160$           38,660$           40,160$           41,660$           43,160$           46,160$           47,660$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Stewartstown 14,086$           14,086$           14,086$           14,086$           14,086$           14,086$           14,086$           14,086$           3,586$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Strafford 2,873$             -$                 57,833$           59,483$           60,983$           62,483$           65,483$           66,983$           68,483$           71,483$           74,483$           77,483$           81,983$           84,983$           89,483$           93,983$           98,483$           102,983$         107,483$       113,483$       117,983$       123,983$       -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Sunapee 83,480$           83,480$           83,480$           83,480$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Tamworth 49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           49,083$           24,615$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Thornton -$                 -$                 91,020$           91,020$           100,909$         100,909$         100,909$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Timberlane 1,103,811$      1,103,811$      1,103,811$      1,083,467$      1,103,811$      1,103,811$      1,103,811$      1,103,811$      1,110,592$      1,110,592$      1,110,592$      -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Unity -$                 -$                 -$                 52,875$           54,341$           102,964$         105,750$         105,632$         104,069$         239,162$         152,007$         152,007$         152,007$         152,007$         149,757$         149,757$         149,757$         149,757$         147,507$       147,507$       147,507$       147,507$       147,507$       147,507$       77,979$         65,604$         -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Wakefield 51,063$           51,063$           51,063$           51,063$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Warren 6,690$             6,690$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Washington 19,921$           19,921$           19,921$           19,921$           18,421$           18,188$           18,188$           18,188$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Waterville Valley 47,897$           28,397$           28,397$           28,397$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Weare 385,686$         385,686$         385,686$         385,686$         385,686$         385,686$         385,686$         369,686$         369,686$         369,686$         369,686$         369,686$         369,686$         369,684$         369,684$         369,684$         369,688$         -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Wentworth -$                 7,841$             7,922$             7,922$             7,922$             7,922$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Westmoreland 13,650$           13,650$           28,830$           29,730$           28,230$           28,230$           26,730$           12,150$           12,150$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

White Mountains Reg. 509,987$         371,843$         187,571$         115,095$         2,106$             2,106$             45,154$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Wilton-Lyndeborough 130,000$         130,000$         130,000$         130,000$         130,000$         130,000$         130,000$         128,000$         128,000$         128,000$         128,000$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Winchester 61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           61,928$           -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Windham 1,233,802$      962,986$         962,986$         962,986$         961,486$         949,486$         1,000,824$      723,426$         721,926$         721,926$         602,995$         602,995$         602,995$         602,995$         602,995$         602,995$         602,995$         -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Winnacunnet Co-op 491,019$         513,519$         574,839$         599,839$         627,339$         657,339$         687,339$         719,839$         752,339$         789,839$         824,839$         862,339$         902,339$         944,839$         992,339$         1,039,839$      -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Winnisquam Regional 745,078$         866,401$         833,682$         844,383$         864,141$         847,128$         616,417$         610,569$         606,078$         599,094$         589,617$         585,147$         583,185$         135,229$         135,782$         136,297$         -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Grand 44,886,628$    46,249,941$    48,892,048$    47,099,159$    44,095,473$    43,296,403$    40,774,272$    37,098,071$    36,500,220$    33,700,315$    31,784,240$    29,065,956$    27,294,477$    25,438,056$    20,812,189$    17,528,498$    14,943,074$    12,250,745$    9,845,071$   6,130,437$   5,572,199$   4,345,555$   3,948,535$   3,191,770$   2,390,879$   2,293,288$   2,167,684$   1,995,909$   1,777,167$   1,733,117$   1,687,367$   743,585$     

e = Estimate.  Financial review not complete. FY20+ payments subject to change.

January 10, 2019



Cash on Hand June 30, 2017

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking Account $704,647.19

Cash on Hand - Food Service Account $14,999.60

Total Cash on Hand June 30, 2017 $719,646.79

Source Description YTD 2017-2018

Appropriations Town of Lyndeborough $2,893,669.98

 Appropriations Town of Wilton $7,000,051.02

 Tuition Extended Day Program $32,756.25

 Tuition Preschool Program $8,700.00

 Liability Offset Dental Insurance $16,329.91

Liability Offset COBRA/Medical Insurance $1,947.35

 Federal Funds Medicaid $65,026.94

Federal Funds Title I $108,944.52

Federal Funds Title II $25,375.70

Federal Funds IDEA $159,394.67

Federal Funds IDEA Preschool $2,422.50

US Treasury REAP $1,040.88

USAC E-Rate $21,215.49

State Funds Building Aid $128,000.00

State Funds Refund - NHRS $12,582.79

NH School Hlth Care Coalition School Care Wellness $16,460.00

State Funds Equitable Aid $1,346,178.19

State Funds Adequate Ed Aid-Prior Year Adjustment $7,664.47

State Funds Special Education - Cat Aid $141,067.29

State Funds Preschool Program $3,378.87

State Funds Food Service Reimbursables $73,907.83

Local Funds Food Service Sales $88,653.93

Town of Wilton C/R Building & Road $16,510.00

State Funds Voc Transportation $2,327.00

Other Jean's Friday $1,417.25

Other Lyndeborough History Book Sales $875.00

Other Lost Book $51.75

FRES LCS PTO Playground Gift $1,500.00

NE Dairy and Food Council Equipment Grant- FUTD $8,900.00

State of New Hampshire Court Case Repayment $66.76

Wilton Lions Use of Facility $395.00

Town of Lyndeborough WB Mason Paper $224.20

Other Wellness Fair $129.00

Primex Insurance Worker's Compensation (MC) $3,267.30

NHASBO P-card Rebate $720.37

Employee Refund-Unpaid Leave (RH) $588.88

Houghton Mifflin Refund $852.50

Quill Refund-Duplicate Payment $130.36

American Discovery Refund-Duplicate Payment $12.00

Benefits Strategies Refund $3,142.59

WLC Student Activity Account Refund for DC Trip $47.61

WLC Student Activity Account Balance of Officials $3,702.85

Employee Returned ACH - Account Closed (JA) $1,162.26

Andy's Summer Playhouse Use of Facility $90.00

Flying Gravity Circus Use of Facility $160.00

Gate City Stiders Use of Facility $300.00

The Greeley School Use of Facility $40.00

Verizon Refund Cell Phones - Account Closed $36.60

NSTA Refund $285.00

NHASP Refund $199.00

School Nutrition Assoc Overpayment $83.00

FRES LCS PTO Library Books $116.20

Other Student Damage - Replacement (EG) $215.00

Other Student Damage - Replacement (CD) $35.00

Other Replace Chromebook - DD $215.00

Other Replace Chromebook - MK $121.00

 Total Receipts $12,202,687.06

General Fund School Board Orders Paid $3,478,668.21

Special Revenue Funds - Grants School Board Orders Paid $197,910.52

Food Service School Board Orders Paid $97,362.90

Prior Year Payables School Board Orders Paid $176,448.57

Payroll School Board Orders Paid $8,419,311.19

Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund School Board Orders Paid $71,510.00

Total Disbursements $12,441,211.39

Current Activity -$238,524.33

Month End Cash on Hand Total $481,122.46

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking $465,982.32

Cash on Hand - Food Service $15,140.14

Month End Cash on Hand Total $481,122.46

To the WLC Coop School Board:

The above is a correct statement of the transactions of the Treasurer to date.

Cindy Marzella

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop School District Treasurer

Treasurer's Annual Report

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop S.D.

Ending June 30, 2018



Cash on Hand June 30, 2018

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking Account 465,982.32$       

Cash on Hand - Food Service Account 15,140.14$         

Total Cash on Hand June 30, 2018 481,122.46$       

Cash on Hand Previous Month

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking Account - June 30, 2018 465,982.32$       

Cash on Hand - Food Service Account - June 30, 2018 15,140.14$         

481,122.46$       

Source Description July 2018 YTD 2018-2019

Appropriations Town of Lyndeborough 246,847.67$       246,847.67$       

 Appropriations Town of Wilton 597,638.08$       597,638.08$       

 Liability Offset Dental Insurance 1,250.68$           1,250.68$           

Liability Offset COBRA/Health Insurance 300.00$              300.00$              

 Federal Funds Medicaid 1,608.99$           1,608.99$           

Federal Funds Title I 7,401.43$           7,401.43$           

Federal Funds Title II 570.15$              570.15$              

Federal Funds IDEA 360.00$              360.00$              

State Funds Food Service Reimbursables 5,167.05$           5,167.05$           

Local Funds Food Service Sales 40.00$                40.00$                

Primex Insurance Workers Compensation (MC) 2,287.11$           2,287.11$           

Other Refund of Prior Year Expense 51.96$                51.96$                

Other Library Donation 30.00$                30.00$                

Other Lost Book 31.98$                31.98$                

 Total Receipts 863,585.10$       863,585.10$       

General Fund School Board Orders Paid 895,780.75$       895,780.75$       

Special Revenue Funds - Grants School Board Orders Paid 405.73$              405.73$              

Food Service School Board Orders Paid 634.79$              634.79$              

Prior Year Payables School Board Orders Paid 15,637.71$         15,637.71$         

Payroll School Board Orders Paid 310,484.08$       310,484.08$       

Total Disbursements 1,222,943.06$    1,222,943.06$    

Current  Activity (359,357.96)$      (359,357.96)$      

Month End Cash on Hand Total 121,764.50$       121,764.50$       

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking - July 31, 2018 106,584.36$       

Cash on Hand - Food Service - July 31, 2018 15,180.14$         

Month End Cash on Hand Total 121,764.50$       

To the WLC Coop School Board:

The above is a correct statement of the transactions of the Treasurer to date.

Cindy Marzella

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop School District Treasurer

Treasurer's Monthly Report

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop S.D.

Ending July 31, 2018



Cash on Hand June 30, 2018

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking Account 465,982.32$       

Cash on Hand - Food Service Account 15,140.14$         

Total Cash on Hand June 30, 2018 481,122.46$       

Cash on Hand Previous Month

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking Account - July 31, 2018 106,584.36$       

Cash on Hand - Food Service Account - July 31, 2018 15,180.14$         

121,764.50$       

Source Description August 2018 YTD 2018-2019

Appropriations Town of Lyndeborough 246,847.67$       493,695.34$       

 Appropriations Town of Wilton 597,638.08$       1,195,276.16$    

 Tuition Preschool Program 1,800.00$           1,800.00$           

 Liability Offset Dental Insurance 1,743.14$           2,993.82$           

Liability Offset COBRA/Health Insurance 1,329.23$           1,629.23$           

 Federal Funds Medicaid 41,384.10$         42,993.09$         

Federal Funds Title I 7,401.43$           

Federal Funds Title II 570.15$              

Federal Funds IDEA 200.00$              560.00$              

State Funds Food Service Reimbursables 5,167.05$           

State Funds Equitable Aid 250,974.00$       250,974.00$       

Local Funds Food Service Sales 1,581.65$           1,621.65$           

Primex Insurance Workers Compensation (MC) 4,574.22$           6,861.33$           

Town of Lyndeborough Copy Paper 183.26$              183.26$              

NH School Health Care Coalition School Care Wellness 3,745.00$           3,745.00$           

Center for Responsive Schools Refund of Overpayment 729.00$              729.00$              

Nashua Adult Learning Center Rental Payment 20.00$                20.00$                

Michael Conley Refund of Overpayment 975.00$              975.00$              

Other Jean's Friday 587.00$              587.00$              

Other Refund of Prior Year Expense 51.96$                

Other Library Donation 30.00$                

Other Lost Book 31.98$                

 Total Receipts 1,154,311.35$    2,017,896.45$    

General Fund School Board Orders Paid 182,456.75$       1,078,237.50$    

Special Revenue Funds - Grants School Board Orders Paid 15,720.29$         16,126.02$         

Food Service School Board Orders Paid 4,280.85$           4,915.64$           

Prior Year Payables School Board Orders Paid 17,732.86$         33,370.57$         

Payroll School Board Orders Paid 712,790.97$       1,023,275.05$    

Total Disbursements 932,981.72$       2,155,924.78$    

Current  Activity 221,329.63$       (138,028.33)$      

Month End Cash on Hand Total 343,094.13$       343,094.13$       

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking - August 31, 2018 326,332.34$       

Cash on Hand - Food Service - August 31, 2018 16,761.79$         

Month End Cash on Hand Total 343,094.13$       

To the WLC Coop School Board:

The above is a correct statement of the transactions of the Treasurer to date.

Cindy Marzella

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop School District Treasurer

Treasurer's Monthly Report

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop S.D.

Ending August 31, 2018



Cash on Hand June 30, 2018

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking Account 465,982.32$         

Cash on Hand - Food Service Account 15,140.14$           

Total Cash on Hand June 30, 2018 481,122.46$         

Cash on Hand Previous Month

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking Account - August 31, 2018 326,332.34$         

Cash on Hand - Food Service Account - August 31, 2018 16,761.79$          

343,094.13$         

Source Description September 2018 June 2019YTD 2018-2019

Appropriations Town of Lyndeborough 246,847.67$         740,543.01$         

 Appropriations Town of Wilton 597,638.08$         1,792,914.24$       

 Tuition Preschool Program 750.00$               2,550.00$             

 Liability Offset Dental Insurance 1,427.36$            4,421.18$             

Liability Offset COBRA/Health Insurance 278.00$               1,907.23$             

 Federal Funds Medicaid 3,181.42$            46,174.51$           

Federal Funds Title I 7,401.43$             

Federal Funds Title II 570.15$                

Federal Funds IDEA 560.00$                

USAC E-Rate 10,990.80$          10,990.80$           

State Funds Food Service Reimbursables 5,167.05$             

State of NH Equitable Aid 250,974.00$         

Local Funds Food Service Sales 12,746.48$          14,368.13$           

Primex Insurance Workers Compensation (MC) 1,633.65$            8,494.98$             

Town of Lyndeborough Copy Paper 183.26$                

NH School Health Care Coalition School Care Wellness 3,745.00$             

Center for Responsive Schools Refund of Overpayment 729.00$                

Nashua Adult Learning Center Rental Payment 190.00$               210.00$                

Michael Conley Refund of Overpayment 975.00$                

Other Jean's Friday 382.00$               969.00$                

Other Refund of Prior Year Expense 51.96$                  

Other Library Donation 30.00$                  

Other Lost Book 31.98$                  

 Total Receipts 876,065.46$         2,893,961.91$       

General Fund School Board Orders Paid 161,013.72$         1,239,251.22$       

Special Revenue Funds - Grants School Board Orders Paid 3,144.33$            19,270.35$           

Food Service School Board Orders Paid 4,786.86$            9,702.50$             

Prior Year Payables School Board Orders Paid 16,025.00$          49,395.57$           

Payroll School Board Orders Paid 995,582.46$         2,018,857.51$       

Total Disbursements 1,180,552.37$      3,336,477.15$       

Current  Activity (304,486.91)$       (442,515.24)$        

Month End Cash on Hand Total 38,607.22$          38,607.22$           

Cash on Hand - WLC Checking - September 30, 2018 9,098.95$            

Cash on Hand - Food Service - September 30, 2018 29,508.27$          

Month End Cash on Hand Total 38,607.22$          

To the WLC Coop School Board:

The above is a correct statement of the transactions of the Treasurer to date.

Cindy Marzella

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop School District Treasurer

Treasurer's Monthly Report

Wilton-Lyndeborough Coop S.D.

Ending September 30, 2018



Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District

Fund 04 ‐ General Fund Revenue

FY 2019‐20 Analysis

17‐18 17‐18 18‐19 19‐20 increase

Description Account GL Actual GL Budget GL Budget Budget (decrease) Comments

Current Appropriation 04.1111.000 8,674,081 8,674,081 9,223,008 9,418,200 195,192 raised taxes and fund balance

Preschool Regular Tuition 04.1311.000 8,700 12,150 12,150 10,800 (1,350) Preschool program $150 ‐ 8

Extended Day Tuition 04.1312.000 32,874 40,500 0 0 0

SPED Tuition from LEAs NH 04.1322.000 0 0 0 0 0

Interest from Investments 04.1510.000 0 5,000 1,000 1,000 0 interest from three trust funds

Rentals ‐ Use of Facilities 04.1910.000 985 200 200 200 0

Contributions/Donations 04.1920.000 0 0 0 0 0

Refund of PY Expenditures 04.1980.000 15,715 28,920 21,982 24,020 2,038 ERATE

Other Local Revenue 04.1990.000 10,581 200 200 20,200 20,000 Pcard rebate, FSA bal, IMPACT

Adequacy Aid 04.3110.000 1,346,178 1,346,687 1,214,038 1,231,727 17,689 per 11/15/18 letter

Statewide Enhanced Ed Tax 04.3112.000 1,219,640 1,219,640 1,195,247 1,193,826 (1,421) per MS24R

Other State Aid 04.3190.000 7,665 1,000 1,000 1,000 0

School Building Aid 04.3210.000 128,000 128,000 128,000 128,000 0

Kindergarten Keno Aid 04.3220.000 0 0 55,000 55,000 0

Catastrophic Aid 04.3230.000 141,067 142,163 135,528 137,087 1,559 69.583% of $197,012

Vocational Tuition Aid 04.3241.000 0 0 0 0 0

Vocational Transport Aid 04.3242.000 2,327 3,000 3,000 3,000 0

Medicaid Distribution 04.4580.000 62,091 80,000 65,000 65,000 0

0

Total Revenue 11,649,904 11,681,541 12,055,353 12,289,060 233,707

Food  Service 04.5221.000 227,287 219,600 215,000 230,000 15,000

Special Revenues 04.5222.000 303,384 299,923 258,652 256,442 (2,210)

Fiduciary ‐ GASB 84 04.5223.000 0 0 0 1 1

TOTALS 12,180,575 12,201,064 12,529,005 12,775,503 246,498

Budget adjusted per DRA Tax Rate Setting ‐ MS‐24 R

Fiduciary Funds ‐ Student Activities disclosure per GASB (Govt Accounting Standards Board)

as of 1/15/2019



 

   

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, January 8, 2019  3 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 4 

     6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 

Present: Harry Dailey, Matt Ballou, Mark Legere, Charlie Post, Joyce Fisk, Carol LeBlanc, Miriam 7 

Lemire, Jonathan Vanderhoof and Alex LoVerme (arrived at 6:37PM). 8 

 9 

Superintendent Bryan Lane, Business Administrator Lise Tucker, Director of Student Support Services 10 

Betty Moore, Principals Brian Bagley, Tim O’Connell, Technology Director Kevin Verratti, 11 

Curriculum Coordinator Julie Heon and Clerk Kristina Fowler 12 

 13 

I. CALL TO ORDER  14 
Chairman Dailey called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 15 

 16 

II. ELEMENTARY STUDNETS OF THE MONTH 17 
Principal O’Connell honored two second grade students as “students of the month” from FRES. 18 

 19 

III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 20 
Superintendent informed members they have received a questionnaire from the auditors. Members 21 

were requested to fill this out tonight or by the end of the week and return to the SAU. 22 

 23 

Chairman Dailey requested to add an action item to the agenda to discuss changing a board meeting 24 

date (February 5) as the Town of Wilton’s budget hearing is scheduled for the same night.  25 

 26 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Ballou and SECONDED by Mr. Post to accept the adjustments to the 27 

agenda. 28 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 29 

 30 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 31 
Chairman Dailey addressed the large public attendance (approximately 80) and noted they will not be 32 

able to discuss contracts or any personnel matters with the public and that no contracts have been 33 

discussed for next year by the Board at this time.  He also asked those who are reading from written 34 

documents to provide those to the minute taker and when speaking, to provide your name and town of 35 

residence for the record.  36 

 37 

Ms. Becky Sours, Wilton, questioned the Board about trade programs, such as plumbing and 38 

electrician courses and wondered if there has been any thought to this as people are nearing retirement 39 

age.  Chairman Dailey confirmed this has been discussed several times.  40 

 41 

Ms. Brianne Lavallee, Lyndeborough, spoke in support of Principal O’Connell and notes she is not 42 

expecting a response at this time; a copy of her statements (see attached) can be found with these 43 

minutes.  She provided the Board with an up to date petition (can be found with minutes, see attached) 44 

in support of Principal O’Connell with 275 signatures accumulated over 5 days which include 45 

comments from parents, tax payers past colleagues and past students. A copy of the petition can be 46 

found with the minutes.  47 

 48 

Ms. Louise Cattigan, Wilton and PTO representative, spoke in support of Principal O’Connell.; a copy 49 

of her statements (see attached) can be found with these minutes. 50 



 

   

 51 

Mr. Matt Mannarino spoke regarding concerns and the recent phone outage; an outline of his 52 

statements (see attached) can be found with these minutes. He spoke of the phones being down which 53 

includes the PA system, no ability to call a lock down, no ability to call out to 911 and parents not 54 

being able to call in. School being open the following day knowing the phones were down and over 55 

the recommendation from the Chief of Police and Principal amidst what appeared to be a lot of 56 

confusion due to no plan.  He stated a plan should have been clearly communicated to staff and 57 

parents. Calling 911 from a cell phone is not acceptable contingency plan. On a good day calling 911 58 

from cell phones adds 5 minutes, they are routed differently.  A Centurylink outage crippled cellular 59 

911 calls and callers got busy signals.  The following day there was a medical emergency at FRES; 60 

head injury, fairly severe, in which every second counts.  At WLC a student passed out near bell time. 61 

Without the PA, a lockdown could not have been called, the student could have sustained further 62 

injury and EMS would not have been able to get through the packed hallways. It was luck that the 63 

emergencies did not happen on the same day as the outage. Opening school during the outage over the 64 

recommendation of the police without a sufficient plan was reckless.   He is not asking for a response 65 

right now from the Board but requests they take some time and think about what the contingency plan 66 

for phones should be and at what risk to staff and students of having school that day without parents 67 

being able to call in or staff being able to call out. 68 

 69 

Mr. Adam Lavallee, Lyndeborough, spoke in regard to overall problems in the schools. He noted he 70 

didn’t know if he necessarily needed a response. He spoke of the math teacher that “vanished” a “rash 71 

of retirements and departures. Ms. Moore has resigned and there seeming to be “a lot of chaos and 72 

messes and now Tim is being run off”.  He questioned why we would choose to create a new problem 73 

when there is a massive mess. He questions the logic behind it as it seems like there are a lot of 74 

problems and should not be creating another. He spoke of home values being tied to the quality of the 75 

school district. He states “if we allow this school to become garbage what do you think will happen to 76 

your home’s value. Messing with that when you have so many problems at the MS/HS”. He states 77 

“when I think of who creates this I look to Bryan Lane. I feel like he is running an administration of 78 

chaos and it will only be made more chaotic with all the replacements.  A more logical thing to do is 79 

replace Bryan as Superintendent.” 80 

 81 

Ms. Joanne Dufour, school counselor at FRES spoke in support of Principal O’Connell; a copy of her 82 

statements (see attached) can be found with these minutes Tim, this is a matter. She stated “I speak as 83 

an individual and for those who are standing with me (several attendees stood) to voice our support for 84 

of public concern.”   85 

 86 

Ms. Kelly Gibson, Wilton, spoke in support of Principal O’Connell; a copy of her statements (see 87 

attached) can be found with these minutes.    88 

 89 

Mr. John Clark, Lyndeborough, spoke in support of Principal O’Connell stating “you may be surprised 90 

to see how many people here. We are supporting “Mr. O” and we are requesting you keep him in our 91 

district in Wilton and Lyndeborough.” 92 

 93 

Mr. Matt Fish, Wilton, spoke of support for Principal O’Connell, stating “there is something wrong for 94 

us to show up there is definitely something wrong, no doubt about it.”  He stated “usually someone is 95 

threatened with a nonrenewal; it’s a kiss of death for someone this position”.  He notes “the whole 96 

thing smells” and that he doubts Superintendent Lane is unaware of this. He states “if there are 97 

changes to the negative, I will be first one to roll up his sleeves and affect change.” 98 

 99 

Ms. Becca Hazen, Wilton spoke in support of Principal O’Connell; a copy of her statements (see 100 

attached) can be found with these minutes.  101 



 

   

 102 

  103 

Ms. Erin Mannarino questioned the lack of a 6th grade math teacher. She notes Superintendent Lane 104 

was going to teach as much as possible and that the teachers at the HS would help out. She is 105 

concerned that they have more subs and information is not consistent or clear. She spoke of an 106 

example where the students were given a project and told it needed to be completed in a day and the 107 

day it was due they were told (by someone else) it was a weeks’ worth of work and not due in a day.   108 

“When they went a month without a teacher, I understand they were playing on a computer for the 109 

month… I understand it was math related. I know she resigned and I don’t need to know the details I 110 

just need to know going forward my child will not be left behind.”  Chairman Dailey responded we are 111 

desperately working on this. 112 

 113 

Mr. Alex LoVerme, speaking as a parent expressed his concerns with the absence of a math teacher 114 

and questioned what will be done to make up 2 months. Work is being given out but not help on how 115 

to do the math and notes they are missing 6th grade math and are basically starting from day 1 and “as 116 

a parent he expects and answer”. 117 

 118 

Ms. Mellissa Collins, Wilton, expressed concerns regarding the absence of a math teacher. “It is not 119 

fair to a parent; all these rumors we are hearing”. There was nothing until something was posted on 120 

Facebook and a parent called the school and employee did not know the teacher was out. Some 121 

communication to parents was needed as we know nothing and it is not fair to parents or students. She 122 

spoke of rumors that have been heard. “It is not fair and I am hoping someone is dealing with it.  We 123 

pay these taxes and we elect you, I understand you can’t discuss the staff stuff but you need something 124 

sent home to parents.”  Chairman Dailey responded that issue has been a high priority for the Board 125 

and the Superintendent. Ms. Collins replied, “I feel you can tell us something”.  Chairman Dailey 126 

responded that we are legally bound and can’t say anything about any personnel matter. We have been 127 

working on a minute by minute basis, it is not a simple fix; we will find a way to move forward. Ms. 128 

Collins hopes if something illegal happened, she hopes they are getting in trouble so it doesn’t happen 129 

to others. 130 

 131 

Ms. Kim Sheridan, FRES school nurse, spoke in support of “Mr. O” and shares her brief experience as 132 

a staff member. “I was blown away at the staff support he has.” She spoke of having several offers and 133 

accepted the position because of him. She could see his sense leadership was exemplary and since then 134 

she has seen him be “Santa”, dress up as a “King” and will do anything to make the kids laugh.  “He is 135 

not afraid or shy away from what he does. In my 24 years of experience, I have never worked for a 136 

better Principal and I would be disheartened if that would change.” 137 

 138 

Ms. Lynn Kraus, Lyndeborough, spoke in support of Principal O’Connell and notes it was a scary 139 

situation before he took over. She spoke of her child who wished to stay at FRES and now wants to be 140 

homeschooled. Some of child’s best friends have left the district and it is not very promising for her 141 

younger children she said. “I know a lot of people here feel the same way and want to speak and if he 142 

leaves I don’t know if we are staying and that’s the bottom line.” 143 

 144 

Mr. Matthew Black, Wilton providing a student’s perspective, spoke of driving to the meeting with his 145 

son who said if he was here he would bring a sign along: we love “Mr. O”.   146 

 147 

Ms. Lisa Blais, Lyndeborough spoke of having two daughters who graduated from this school and has 148 

a daughter going to FRES and “thanks to “Mr. O” and the staff she would not be in this district with 149 

her medical needs, I think this is awful what is going on”. 150 

 151 



 

   

Ms. Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral, spoke of having boys going to WLC and was in the district before 152 

“Tim”.   “He did a wonderful job with my boys I have always felt with WLC that it’s the little school 153 

that could, now it’s the school that doesn’t. We need to put the love in this school we put into FRES 154 

because it has the potential. Tim has set a good example”. 155 

 156 

Ms. Christine Keller, spoke of having experience in the Milford school system. “We were reluctant 157 

because we had not heard good things about it (FRES) and the previous Principal. The first year “Tim” 158 

had an ice-cream social for kids and the kids loved it. FRES is a great school and it’s an exemplary 159 

school for the district and that’s thanks to “Tim”. 160 

 161 

Ms. Leeann Clark spoke in support of Principal O’Connell. “Mr. O” was her 6th grade teacher at 162 

Hollis-Brookline. Wilton wasn’t the school to come to. We recently bought a house and my best friend 163 

told me “Mr. O” was the Principal and it’s because of him we stayed here and I hope we keep him and 164 

if not my house will be on the market.” 165 

 166 

Ms. Heather Gibson questioned how the search for a new math teacher is going. Superintendent Lane 167 

responded we have an interview tomorrow. 168 

 169 

Ms. Molly Moore Lazar, WLCTA, spoke regarding the MS reorganization. “Later on in your agenda 170 

you have reorganization to the MS. The Strategic Planning Committee is considering cutting 2 171 

positions and hearing all the people here, they want to build this school up”.   172 

 173 

Ms. Christine Keller stated “the 8th grade and 6th grade share teachers, cutting 2 more teachers would 174 

be detrimental for sure”. 175 

 176 

Mr. Adam Lavallee stated “all this stuff about the math teacher keeps coming up and I have one of the 177 

students left behind as we do nothing; one of the things that bothers me is Mr. Lane. No wonder he 178 

can’t get things done, he is teaching math. This shows me a complete and inept…I want to officially 179 

request he resigns; he is not competent to lead this school”. He requests a vote of no confidence.   180 

 181 

Ms. Gail Proctor questioned the timeline for the contractual process. Chairman Dailey responded 182 

typically they are discussed in April, by law we have to notify every one of their contract status by 183 

April and typically the first meeting is in April when all contracts are discussed. That is the typical 184 

process we go though. There are exceptions. 185 

 186 

Ms. Juliann Carrier, Wilton, question whose decision is it ultimately. Chairman Dailey responded the 187 

School Board makes all final decisions. 188 

 189 

Mr. Adam Mannarino, questioned if this year was out of the normal process referring to Chairman 190 

Dailey saying the “typical process” (for discussing contracts).  Chairman Dailey there are retirement 191 

and things that come up during the year but 99% of the time they are discussed in April.  Mr. 192 

Mannarino questioned if there is anything atypical this year that he is aware of. Chairman Dailey 193 

responded, not that he is aware of and thanked the public for attending. He spoke in regard to the 194 

School Board members, saying in all his time, the people that sit around this table work very hard and 195 

work tireless through the year, to do the best for students and the district. “We don’t always get 196 

everything right but is not for a lack of trying. It’s our job to come up with solutions”. He appreciates 197 

all the comments and efforts and would like to see this many people show up at all the Board 198 

meetings. 199 

 200 

Mr. Matt Fish thanked the Board for hearing the attendees.  201 

 202 



 

   

Public comment ended at 7:20pm and due to time, skipped to joint session portion of the agenda and 203 

after returned to scheduled agenda. 204 

 205 

V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 206 

a. Reports 207 

i. Superintendent’s Report 208 

ii. Principals’ Reports 209 

iii. Business Administrators Report 210 
 See action items, Consent Agenda-Board Reports.  211 

 212 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 213 
See action items, Consent Agenda-Board Reports.  214 

 215 

VII. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 216 

a. FY2019-2020 217 
i. Budget Review Session 218 

Present: Leslie Browne, Christine Tiedemann, Jennifer Bernet, Lisa Post, Kevin Boette, Dennis 219 

Golding, Bill Ryan, Edwina Hastings and Pam Altner 220 

 221 

A very brief pause was taken while the Budget Committee entered and some members of the public 222 

exited.  223 

 224 

The committee was in session as they met prior at 6:30pm.  225 

 226 

Chairman Dailey called the meeting back to order at 7:24pm 227 

 228 

Superintendent stated the budget, currently as it stands is $12,289,061 which is an increase of 229 

$293,678 (2.45%). He noted primarily the increases are in salaries and benefits.  Supplies are up 230 

relating to new curriculum initiatives.  He noted increases in utilities; a good portion is due to 231 

increases in cost and long term initiatives; this is the best figure from the Utilities Commission. 232 

 233 

Superintendent confirmed for Ms. Browne the ADM number comes from the DOE. She questioned 234 

what the ADM number is now, is it 501? He confirmed adequacy aid is budgeted for $1,231,727. He 235 

confirmed it’s based on the number from the DOE and is not within our control, it is not current 236 

enrollment, it is from the 2017-2018 school year.  He confirmed we get a specific number that comes 237 

back in a specific document. Ms. Post noted they looked into that number and contacted the DRA and 238 

they would be happy to do a forum for the Budget Committee and/or School Board during the day in 239 

Concord if there is interest to know how these numbers are calculated, all the revenue numbers.  240 

 241 

Chairman Dailey clarified it is important to remember when you approve a gross budget that is not the 242 

number that you are taxed on. There are revenues that offset that. There are several million dollars that 243 

come in for example from E-rate; this is what Ms. Post is speaking of.  244 

 245 

Superintendent clarified in the RISE program, we have ABA Therapists or specialist and there is a 246 

cost savings to keep students in the district and not go out of district which is more costly (out of 247 

district). We have specialist for SPED student needs as well.  248 

 249 

Clarification was asked for regarding expenses relating to professional services around instructional 250 

programing. Last year it was $18,000 and next year has dropped $200. Superintendent clarified this is 251 

math instruction for the new program that has been put forward. 252 

 253 



 

   

Ms. Browne explained the Budget Committee currently stands in support of the contractual increases 254 

of $116,879 over last year’s budget and will continue discussions after the decision of the MS 255 

reorganization options. All of their questions are answered and they have a better understanding of 256 

what is being looked for; they do think there is some room in the budget and want to keep a flat 257 

budget.  258 

ii. Warrants 259 

Superintendent explained the first warrant is the budget set by the Budget Committee (not School 260 

Board).  There is always hope a common number is agreed upon. The second article is for the Capital 261 

Improvement Plan (CIP). It was agreed upon in past years $60,000 would be the number to put forth 262 

and has always been a separate warrant article. This is for long range planning such as the roof and 263 

other pieces along the way like renovations to the bathrooms. The CIP is on the website and if anyone 264 

has trouble finding it please let us know. None of the articles have been voted on by either the Budget 265 

Committee or School Board. The last article is for a change in the apportionment formula. We would 266 

be looking to create a rolling average to alleviate drastic spikes to the tax impact that comes annually.  267 

The 3 year rolling average doesn’t change what you pay, it makes the impact less. He confirmed the 268 

Budget Committee does need to vote on this article. It has been reviewed by legal but once it is final 269 

we will send to the attorney for final review.  270 

 271 

 Mr. Vanderhoof wonders if there is anything else that should be looked at and suggests looking at this 272 

more closely before it is locked down for five years.   Ms. Post indicated she spoke to the 273 

Lyndeborough Selectman and their concern is it might not help them as much as it would Wilton and 274 

if it could take time to get the money back; they didn’t take a position on it. Chairman Dailey 275 

reiterated it doesn’t change the amount you pay over three years. The district doesn’t have the ability 276 

to adjust the tax rate; the town does have a mechanism to do this (from unassigned fund balance). He 277 

spoke of Lyndeborough having a “big hit” on taxes two years ago. When the Articles of Agreement 278 

were changed, it had been almost perfectly steady for 20 years and then we had a spike. This would 279 

allow us to level it; you are spending the same amount of money over the same period of time.   280 

 281 

It was confirmed for Ms. Post once a change is made to the funding formula you can’t change it for 5 282 

years. This is just for the funding formula or financing of the district, not all the Articles of Agreement 283 

and is only for cooperative school districts.  A document was provided at a prior Board meeting 284 

showing what the changes would look like. Superintendent will redistribute to the Board and Budget 285 

Committee.  A discussion was had regarding using 50/50 ADM and valuation as it is now or changing 286 

this.  The draft warrant is showing 50% ADM only. 287 

 288 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Ballou and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to change the draft warrant to 289 

50/50 ADM and valuation. *  290 

 291 

Discussion continued regarding options such as 50% ADM & 50% valuation, 100 % ADM, 50%, 292 

ADM and any benefits associated. The question was raised if it has been looked into what other towns 293 

use.  Superintendent responded that question was raised with other Superintendents and no one does a 294 

100% of one or the other that he is aware of at this time. It was requested to have more data such as 295 

what was received a couple of meetings ago based on 50/50 ADM and valuation and provide examples 296 

based on 100% or 75%, which ever scenarios are decided on.  It was noted the warrant is in draft form 297 

and formal votes will still be taken on the articles. 298 



 

   

 299 

*Voting: six ayes; two nays from Mr. Vanderhoof and Mr. Post, motion carried. 300 

 301 

A discussion of using impact fees was had. Superintendent reviewed there are approximately $20,000 302 

in impact fees from the Town of Wilton available. There is a six-year period that they have to be used 303 

and according to the finance person at the town $20,000 is a safe number although it is probably a 304 

little more. Currently it is not in the revenue budget as it is a School Board decision if you wish to add 305 

that to the revenue side. The process is if it is added, and the budget is approved by the public, we 306 

would send a letter to the town to release the funds by July1. This does not need to be on a warrant 307 

article.  308 

 309 

A MOTION was made by Ms. LeBlanc and SECONDED by Ms. Fisk to accept the $20,000 in impact 310 

fees. 311 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 312 

 313 

Superintendent confirmed it will be added to the budget revenue and reduce the budget by $20,000. It 314 

will be in accordance to the apportionment in the Articles of Agreement for Wilton and 315 

Lyndeborough. It was suggested that this is a different type of revenue and questioned if this should be 316 

followed. Superintendent to get confirmation on this and report back. Superintendent confirmed final 317 

decisions need to be made at the next joint meeting (Jan. 22) in order to meet the time lines.  318 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 319 
There was no public comment to report.  320 

 321 

A MOTION was made by Ms. Tiedemann and SECONDED by Mr. Boette to adjourn the Budget 322 

Committee joint session at 8:04pm. 323 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 324 

 325 

Mr. Adam Lavallee, Lyndeborough, questioned if the town may or may not have an opportunity to 326 

comment on the MS reorganization. Chairman Dailey responded there were already 2 opportunities for 327 

the public to comment this evening. There could be a vote taken and any” budgetary discussion” can 328 

be discussed or overturned at a public hearing.  He confirmed there is more to the MS reorganization 329 

discussion; it is not just about eliminating teachers. 330 

  331 

IX. ACTION ITEMS 332 

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 333 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Mr. Post to approve the minutes of 334 

December 11, 2018 as amended. 335 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 336 

 337 

 CONSENT AGENDA-BOARD REPORTS 338 
Chairman Dailey recommends due to length of public comment and a full agenda, the Board 339 

Correspondence Reports be accepted as a whole as a part of the consent agenda. There was no readout 340 

provided however Chairman Dailey informed the public that the Board Packet which includes these 341 

reports can be accessed on the district website.  342 

 343 

A MOTION was made by Ms. LeBlanc and SECONDED by Mr. Legere to accept the (consent agenda) 344 

Board Correspondence Reports as written 345 



 

   

Voting: seven ayes; one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof, motion carried. 346 

 347 

b. Elect Negotiations Committee 348 
Chairman Dailey reminded the group this will be a standing committee. 349 

 350 

A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Fisk to nominate Mr. Ballou for the 351 

Negotiations Committee. 352 

Voting: seven ayes; one abstention from Mr. Ballou, motion carried. 353 

 354 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Post and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to nominate Mr. Vanderhoof for 355 

the Negotiations Committee. 356 

Voting: seven ayes; one abstention from Mr. Vanderhoof, motion carried. 357 

 358 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Legere and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to nominate Mr. LoVerme for 359 

the Negotiations Committee. 360 

Voting: six ayes; two abstentions from Mr. LoVerme and Mr. Vanderhoof, motion carried. 361 

 362 

Negotiations Committee membership consists of Mr. Ballou, Mr. Vanderhoof and Mr. LoVerme. 363 

 364 

c. MS Reorganization 365 
Mr. Vanderhoof notes the Strategic Planning Committee recommended changing the MS model with 366 

the reduction two MS teachers. 367 

 368 

Superintendent gave details of the change regarding the MS model which included the concept for the 369 

MS model in grades 6 and 7 would be maintained. If the two teachers were reduced, the science 370 

teacher from HS would teach 8th grade and two sections of science. It does create some scheduling 371 

difficulties. A teacher would be assigned to teach English and social students for the 8th grade and 372 

those teachers would be certified with dual certification. The 8th grade would share classes in math and 373 

foreign language as they do now. This would expand into PE, computers, art, band and chorus.  Sixth 374 

grade classes would be 21 in the major subject areas, 7th grade would be 22 and 8th grade would be 15 375 

or less. There is an increase in class size in each of the sections. There has been input from MS staff 376 

and they have shared their concerns, and input from the Strategic Planning Committee. Eighth graders 377 

would have the ability to earn credit for elective classes in unified arts. There is the possibility an 8th 378 

grader would have class with a 12th grader but not likely. By adding classes such as AP US History 379 

and AP World History, it allows the students to move forward. A lack of flexibility in the science 380 

schedule has a ripple effect throughout.  He spoke of the Region 16 Agreement which gives more 381 

opportunity for students to take classes in other schools such as Milford, Con-Val, Alvirne and 382 

Mascenic and for example, Alvirne offers forestry. Travel time is an issue and they may have to take a 383 

period out of their schedule for travel.  Currently there are 2 students going to Milford. We do 384 

advertise to get the word out to students so they know what is available. 385 

 386 

Ms. LeBlanc spoke noting she is on the Strategic Planning Committee and notes the MS 387 

reorganization has been discussed many times. She questions if this is the right time to make a change 388 

especially now that the students are not getting full math instruction. She does not think cutting back 389 

teachers is a good idea at this time. She suggests giving time for the new things implemented to show 390 

effect. 391 

 392 

Chairman Dailey notes the 4 options originally presented. No changes, create change in the schedule 393 

with reduction of two MS teachers, create change in the schedule with no reduction, create change in 394 

the schedule with no reduction in staff and create a program for grades 6 and 7 for enhancement or 395 



 

   

remediation within the school day.  His concern is with delaying and not giving these students more 396 

options.   397 

 398 

Concerns were raised this is about a budget cut and we have 6th graders falling behind and this would 399 

increase class sizes. The flexibility is for MS not HS. The MS reorganization would affect the HS and 400 

what is the solution for the HS students. Superintendent Lane confirms there would be restrictions.  401 

The schedule becomes more difficult to make and students may have to make decisions.  It was 402 

suggested to support the change without staff reductions and review it next year to see if it has been 403 

productive. 404 

 405 

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. Ballou to accept changes to the MS 406 

schedule with no staff reductions.  407 

 408 

Mr. Legere asked what the outcome of the Strategic Planning meeting was after the WLCTA 409 

presentation. Mr. Vanderhoof reports they had a meeting and discussed it but only two members were 410 

present and no voting took place.  411 

 412 

Discussions continued including the suggestion from Superintendent Lane of having joint discussions 413 

and come up with a joint plan that takes different pieces of the plans (including teachers plan).  It was 414 

noted teachers who teach 8th grade would not have a common planning time but the MS teachers 415 

brought forward a plan that includes this, any changes in programming have to be approved by the 416 

School Board.  417 

 418 

Mr. Ballou withdraws his SECOND. 419 

 420 

Ms. Lemire AMMENDS her MOTION to say “direct the SAU staff along with WLC staff to create a 421 

modification to the current MS program at a later date, with no reduction in staff” SECONDED by 422 

Mr. Ballou. * 423 

 424 

A question was raised regarding why is there not support for reducing staff, is it because of class sizes. 425 

Ms. Lemire prefers to give this a year to see if the plan works before reducing teaches to alleviate any 426 

negative impact to students.  427 

 428 

Chairman Dailey notes that the Budget Committee is aware of the proposal to reduce staff and they 429 

may vote to reduce the teachers. The budget goes to the voters to approve and someone from the floor 430 

could vote to add money back in for the positions at district meeting.   431 

 432 

*Voting: six ayes; two nays from Mr. Vanderhoof and Mr. Post, motion carried. 433 

 434 

X. POLICIES 435 

i. BIA-New Board Member Orientation-2nd Read 436 
No additional changes have been made since the last reading. 437 

It was suggested to add the word “to” in the following sentence: New Board members will be 438 

informed on where “to” access the following by the Superintendent of Schools. The change will be 439 

made. 440 

 441 

This was a second reading and will be brought back for a third reading. 442 

 443 

ii. BDB-Board Officers-2nd Read 444 
References to the secretary have been eliminated in both places. No other changes have made to this 445 

since the last reading. A question was raised why the “Chair” is not able to initiate or second motions. 446 



 

   

Superintendent responded this follows Roberts Rules. Chairman Dailey added with 9 people he thinks 447 

there are enough to make motions.  It was suggested in the first paragraph to add “non-voting” to the 448 

Superintendent ex-officio in the first paragraph. The sentence will read: 449 

The Superintendent is the chief executive officer and ex-officio member of the Board “without voting 450 

rights”. The change will be made and brought back for a third reading. Regarding the 2nd paragraph in 451 

the policy, a brief discussion took place regarding the Chairperson voting.  Chairman Dailey noted as a 452 

member of the Board he has the right to vote on all matters but generally the only reason a “Chair” 453 

would vote is to break a tie vote.  Some members would prefer if the “Chair” did vote. Superintendent 454 

to get confirmation and report back. 455 

 456 

 JICI-Weapons on School Property 457 
Superintendent provided an update on this policy. Primex (our insurer) reported no recommendation 458 

for staff to carry weapons. They recommend we speak with the local Police Chief who indicates if the 459 

Board chose to allow it to happen he would advocate strongly for a safety training scenario that would 460 

be annual in nature and the firearm be on the employees at all times. He would be willing to speak to 461 

the Board. This can be outlined by policy or in staff handbooks. He added with the change in the local 462 

Legislature, there may be a change in the law.  It was pointed out that this was not on the agenda and 463 

perhaps discussion should end. Chairman Dailey suggests this be put on the next agenda and send a 464 

formal invite for the Police Chiefs to attend. 465 

 466 

XI. COMMITTEE REPORTS 467 

i. Budget Liaison 468 
Mr. LoVerme reported he was in attendance for a short time and he referred to Ms. Post. Ms. Post 469 

reported the committee is recommending to add to last year’s budget number, only the approved CBA 470 

obligations however this is not final. 471 

 472 

XII. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 473 
Superintendent reported providing two copies of the “notice to accept” for resignations from Ms. 474 

Audrey Withee effective December 14, 2018 at WLC and Ms. Betty Moore at the SAU, effective June 475 

30, 2019.  No acceptance from the Board is needed based on the policy. 476 

 477 

XIII. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 478 
Discussion was had which included the School Board and the Budget Committee wanting a flat budget 479 

and the towns have already seen an increase.  Concern was raised that the numbers (revenue) may not 480 

be correct and suggested to have it checked on the state revenue side. It was noted the formula is not 481 

given just a number. Superintendent to double check and confirmed this it is a number we are given. It 482 

was also suggested to do a look back from last year to see what was wrong. Mr. Post reminded the 483 

group the reason their taxes went up is because of the revenue and that is because of the student 484 

numbers dropping. He would like to see all the documents that were referenced such as MS24-R, prior 485 

revenue from last year and the actual revenue. Superintendent to provide this to the whole Board.  486 

 487 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 488 
Ms. Heidi Kemmerer, spoke regarding changes in the MS reorganization and if it is possible a 6th 489 

grade student would get the same math teacher. Superintendent confirmed this does happen. Ms. 490 

Kemmerer commented it didn’t favor every student. She added honors students struggle with getting 491 

the schedules to work and thinks if you “mess with it” you are touching something really delicate. It is 492 

tough to get everything they require. 493 

 494 

Ms. Lisa Post, Lyndeborough, spoke regarding the MS reorganization. She commented the changes 495 

were to give students the ability to take those classes so they will have the prerequisites earlier. She 496 

spoke of her children’s experience taking all the basics in his early years and went to college in his last 497 



 

   

year of HS. “When children are with older students they want to be seen as part of then, it lifts them 498 

up to see a greater level”.  She also spoke of her concern with the math scores that continue to be low 499 

and doesn’t see why holding the 8th grade class back benefits them, as it will take 4-5 years to shake it 500 

out. Chairman Dailey responded, “but we didn’t”. Ms. Post adds with what was approved you are 501 

increasing taxes and the amount it cost to educate each pupil by maintaining class sizes of 13-15. The 502 

Budget Committee is concerned with the return on investment. 503 

 504 

Ms. Christine Keller spoke regarding the MS reorganization. “When you cut a MS teacher you are 505 

cutting curriculum.  There is a specific curriculum you are cutting and having them take HS classes 506 

instead. She thinks it’s a good to take the kids who are doing well and push them but if you do this on 507 

a larger level, you are not giving them what the need.  There is not as much opportunity for 8th graders 508 

and HS”. Mr. Vanderhoof notes algebra is already available and we are adding co-curricular courses.  509 

Ms. Keller responds, for example each grade they have a specific curriculum such as creative writing, 510 

different topics that you are taking away from them. Some kids will excel but to do it on a larger scale 511 

it can be detrimental.  512 

 513 

Ms. Brianne Lavallee spoke regarding the MS reorganization. “There are some things we can control 514 

and some we cannot. The loss of the MS math teacher has had an effect.”  Students are struggling and 515 

she can attest to this as a substitute teacher and a parent.  SEER is used to get extra help if they need it. 516 

She invites anyone to substitute 22 children and feel like you are leaving having done a great job. 517 

“Losing the MS math teacher is not in control to even talk about taking away 2 teachers is failure.” 518 

 519 

Mr. Adam Lavallee spoke regarding the MS reorganization (regarding reduction in MS teachers) 520 

stating it is asking for a 57% of increase in the number of students in one class. He thanks the Board 521 

for voting appropriately. 522 

 523 

Julianne Carey, Wilton comments “I agree 100% with what they are saying”. 524 

 525 

Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral asked for clarification in the process if this comes up later and the Budget 526 

Committee votes to eliminate the 2 teachers.  Chairman Dailey explains the number you see at the 527 

district meeting is the Budget Committee’s number not the Boards. Sometimes they are the same and 528 

sometimes they are not.  Someone would have to make a motion to add the dollars back in. We have 529 

had motions (from the floor) go both ways to add and take away from the budget. He confirmed the 530 

tax payers have the final say. She asks “are tax payers are not interested in the students?”  Chairman 531 

Dailey notes it is frustrating that we probably have 3,400 registered voters and you have less than 100 532 

who attend the district meeting. It was noted last year there were 97 in attendance. Chairman Dailey 533 

again voices his hope for having this kind of attendance at every meeting.  Ms. Cloutier-Cabral 534 

comments these meetings have to be filled with tax payer parents. Several parents agreed. 535 

 536 

Mr. Fran Bujak, Lyndeborough questions what the difference is in the number from the Budget 537 

Committee and the number provided during the budget presentation.  He asks for confirmation that the 538 

Budget Committee is working off of last year’s budget number plus the contractual raises.  Chairman 539 

Dailey responds the number is $176,829.  Superintendent Lane will provide Mr. Bujak with a 540 

summary sheet of the budget.  541 

 542 

Ms. Lisa Post clarifies the contractual (CBA) raise increases are $116,879 and is what the Budget 543 

Committee added to last year’s budget number. The $176,000 is the difference between their working 544 

number and the Boards. 545 

 546 



 

   

Mr. Adam Lavallee questioned if we can reduce the budget by making the Superintendent a part-time 547 

position. Chairman Dailey responds we can do anything the tax payers choose. The Budget Committee 548 

determines the number.  549 

 550 

XV. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 551 
Mr. LoVerme voices concern with the 6th grade MS math teacher situation and lack of qualified 552 

candidates. He spoke of the phone system, which we pay over $3,000 a month for he notes and 553 

questioned why it took so long for the phones to come back up.  554 

 555 

Ms. LeBlanc thanked everyone for coming and hopes to see them again many more times. 556 

 557 

Mr. Ballou thanks all for attending. 558 

 559 

Mr. Legere thanks for all for attending and notes it is said regularly at Board meetings they would like 560 

to have more public attendance. 561 

 562 

Ms. Lemire questioned how many applications have been received for the MS math position. 563 

Superintendent responds “1”. She questions if there is anything the Board can do to support this 564 

process better. Superintendent responds we are looking at prior applicants and have reached out to 565 

prior teachers in the district. He would like to have someone in there as quickly as possible the issue 566 

has been finding someone. “There is no one who is happy about this”. 567 

 568 

XVI. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 569 

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. Vanderhoof to enter Non-Public 570 

Session to discuss student and personnel matters RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 9:23pm. 571 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 572 

 573 

  RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 574 
The Board entered public session at 10:51pm. 575 

 576 

A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by 577 

Ms. LeBlanc. 578 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 579 

 580 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT 581 

A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Mr. Vanderhoof to adjourn the Board 582 

meeting at 10:52pm. 583 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 584 

 585 

Respectfully submitted, 586 

Kristina Fowler 587 
 588 

















































REQUEST FOR BUDGET TRANSFER NO.: 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST 

_____ FISCAL YEAR: 18-19 DATE: 12/20/2018 

SCHOOL: c.F
_:_
Rc:Ec:S ______________ _ SCHOOL: -'W-'-L=-C

cc
M
cc

S
:c_ _______________ _ 

Account Number Current 
Approp. 

SPED Transportation FRES 

TRANSFER FROM: 

Transfer 
Amount 

Revised 
Appropriation 

04-2722-519-11 $ 56,303.00 $ 9,600.00 $ 46,703.00 

TOTAL TRANSFERRED FROM: $ 9,600.00 

JUSTIFICATION: To pay for Speech/Language Services at WLCMS/HS 

REQUESTOR: DIRECTOR/PRINCIPAL/DATE 

�-Jr) /1 U-
--············ · -

¥, '!Aoore 
I /!!l!_r 
r· 

APPROVED: BUSINESS O.FFICE/DATE 

��k ,/2lr1 
Lise Tucker 

Budget Transfer Speech serv. 

Account Number 
Description 

Sil Pathologist Contracted Serv-MS 
04-2152-321-02 
Sil Pathologist Contracted Serv-HS 
04-2152-321-03

TOTAL TRANSFERRED TO: 

TRANSFER TO: 

Current 
Approp. 

$ 14,850.00 

$ 7,664.00 

Transfer 
Amount 

$ 4,800.00 

$ 4,800.00 

$ 9,600.00 

(required for greater than or equal to $1,000) 

APPROVED: WLC SCHOOL BOARD 

(required for greater than or equal to $5,000) 

Revised 
Appropriation 

$ 19,650.00 

$ 12,464.00 



   

JICI - WEAPONS ON SCHOOL PROPERTY 
 
 

Category: Required By Law 

Weapons are not permitted on school property, in school vehicles or at school-sponsored 
activities.  This policy applies to students and members of the public alike.  Student violations of 
this policy will result in both school disciplinary action and notification of local law enforcement 
authorities.  Members of the public who violate this policy will be reported to local law 
enforcement authorities. 

Students are not permitted to be in possession of weapons on school property, in school vehicles or at 

school  sponsored events  regardless of  their  location.    Student  violations of  this policy will  result  in 

both school disciplinary action and notification of local law enforcement authorities. 

The term “weapons” includes, but is not limited to, firearms (rifles, pistols, revolvers, pellet 
guns, BB guns, etc.) knives, slingshots, metallic knuckles, firecrackers, billy-clubs, stilettos, 
switchblade knives, swords, canes, pistol canes, black jacks, daggers, dirk knives, explosives, 
incendiaries, martial arts weapons or self-defense weapons (as defined by RSA 159:24 and RSA 
159:20 respectively), or any other object or substance which, in the manner it is used or 
threatened to be used, is known to be capable of producing death or bodily injury. 

In addition, any student who is determined to have brought a firearm (as defined by 18 U.S.C. 
§921) to school will be expelled for not less than one year (365 days). This expulsion may be 
modified by the Superintendent upon review of the specific case in accordance with other 
applicable law. 

Pursuant to the provisions of 20 U.S.C. § 7151, Gun-Free Schools Act, the Wilton-
Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board requires the Superintendent to contact local law 
enforcement authorities and/or the Division of Children and Youth Services and notify them of 
any student who brings a firearm or weapon on school property. 

Weapons under control of law enforcement personnel are permitted. 

All students will receive written notice of this policy at least once each year. 

Legal References: 
18 U.S.C. § 921 Et seq., Firearms 
20 U.S.C. § 7151, Gun-Free Schools Act 
RSA 193-D, Safe School Zones 
RSA 193:13, Suspension and Expulsion of Students 
NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed. 317, Standards and Procedures for  
Suspension and Expulsion of Pupils Including Procedures Assuring Due Process 
 
Appendix JICD-R 
Appendix JICI-R 
 
Revised:  April 2010 
Reviewed:   October 2004 
Revised:   November 1999, February 2005, May 2006 

 
 Original Adoption Date: October 12, 2011 
  
 First Reading: October 26, 2011 
 Second Reading: November 8, 2011 

Final Adoption: November 8, 2011 



BIA - NEW BOARD MEMBER ORIENTATION 
 
 

A new member is to be afforded the Board and the staff’s fullest measures of courtesy and 
cooperation. Board and staff shall make every feasible effort to assist the new member to become 
fully informed about the Board’s functions, policies, and procedures. 

A special workshop will be convened for the primary purpose of orienting the new member to 
his or her responsibilities, to the Board’s method of operating, and to Districts policies and 
procedures. 

Each new member will be provided with those materials: 

New Board members will be informed on where to access the following by the Superintendent of 
Schools: 

1.  The previous year’s complete record of minutes. 

2.  A copy of Revised Statutes Annotated Relating to Public Schools. (RSA) 

3.  A copy of  Becoming A Better Board Member. 

4.  The School Board Policy Manual. 

5.  The NH School Boards Association Orientation Packet. 

6.  The current school budget. 

7.  Negotiated Labor Agreements. 

5.  The current school budget 

6.  Negotiated Labor Agreements 

 

New Board members will be informed of workshops as they become available. 

 
First Reading: September 14, 2010 
Second Reading: October 12, 2010 
Final Adoption: October 12, 2010 
 

 
 
 



BDB - BOARD OFFICERS 
 

The officers of the Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board shall be a Chairperson, a 
Vice-Chairperson and a Secretary. The officers shall be elected at the annual organization 
meeting to serve until the next annual organization meeting or until a successor is elected. Any 
vacancy in any of such offices may be filled at any meeting of the Board provided that all 
members of the Board have been notified prior to the meeting that the vacancy will be filled at 
such meeting. The Superintendent is the chief executive officer and an ex-officio member of the 
Board without voting rights and shall be the Executive Secretary ex-officio. 

CHAIRPERSON: 

The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and shall not originate or second motions; 
however, the Chairperson shall have the right to vote on all matters before the Board. The 
chairperson shall consult with the Superintendent on the preparation of the agenda for each 
meeting, shall have authority to sign contracts and other instruments as approved by the Board in 
its name and on its behalf, and shall have such other powers and duties as the Board may from 
time to time determine. 

VICE-CHAIRPERSON: 

The Vice-Chairperson shall have the powers and duties of the Chairperson in his/her absence or 
for the duration of the disability, and such other powers and duties as the Board may from time 
to time determine. 

SECRETARY: 

The Secretary shall be responsible for Board correspondence when directed by the Chairperson. 

 
First Reading: September 14, 2010 
Second Reading: October 12, 2010 
Final Adoption: October 12, 2010 
 

 
 
 



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board 
FROM:  Bryan Lane 
DATE:  1/16/19 
RE:  Nomination for Jeffrey Moore 
 
Please accept this as the nomination for Jeffrey Moore to fill the open position for middle school math at 
WLC.  Jeffrey is a retired police officer with multiple years of teaching the DARE program to middle school 
students.  He also has worked as a coach at the high school and college level.  Mr. Moore has a master’s 
degree in Administration from Western New England College and bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice from 
UMass Lowell.  He has a Statement of Eligibility to teach mathematics from the New Hampshire Department 
of Education and will be an Alternative IV certification.  His college courses in mathematics have focused 
around calculus and statistics. 
 
We will provide a mentor and a plan to meet the Alternative IV requirements for certification.  I am 
recommending that the Board accept the nomination of Jeffery Moore at Masters Step 1, a salary of $40,000 
prorated for 95 school days. 
 
 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-654-8088 
 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 






	WLC School Board Agenda 1.22.19.pdf
	Supt report January 22.19 final
	SSS report January 2019
	Technology Board Report 1-12-2019
	ADM
	Curriculum Revision Cycle
	FY2018 FDCL 062818
	FY2020 Estimated Adequacy Grants Explained 111518
	2018 MS24R Revised Estimated Revenues 101118
	MS 24 2-17
	DRA Wilton-Lyndeborough Regional Apportionment 101518
	FY2019 #14 Special Education Aid Estimate Report 100318
	Estimated Kindergarten Aid FY2019 as of 10-1-18 web
	Building Aid Distribution Schedule 10-41
	Treasurers Reports June 2018-Sept 2018
	Annual Treasurer Report June 2018.pdf
	Treasurer Report - July 2018
	Treasurer Report - August 2018
	Treasurer Report - September 2018

	General Fund Revenue 19-20 011519
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 1.8.19
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 1.8.19-.pdf
	public comment and petition

	Transfer-SPED
	Policies JICI. BIA. BDB
	JICI-Weapons on School Property 3rd read Revsisions included.pdf
	BIA 3rd read to board 1.22
	BDB-board officers 3rd read to board 1.22

	Nomination-MS Math Teacher
	Nomination for Jeffrey Moore
	Jeff Moore Resume.pdf




